Pt
SHad
aiadn

3
Ry
ERTEe
Fhe e

*ABZZKS54A*

Al 24/03/2023 #38
COMPANIES HOUSE




Group snapshot 3 L

Chief Executive’s review 4 :
Our business at a glance 8 ?
Our strategy in focus 12 ;
Directors 15 ;
Principal risks and uncertainties 18§ ;

Corporate governance 20
Group finance review 23
Directors report 28
Independent audjtors report 31 :
4| FENCIAL STATE 2077
Group profit and loss 35 |
Group balance sheet 36 ‘
Company balance sheet 37
Group staternent of changes in eguity 38 ?
Company statement of changes in equity 39
Group statement of cash flows 40 :
Staternent of accounting policies 41
Notes to the finrancial statements 52 i

5147

91

61

AN INEORMATIC

M

Directors and advisers 92




1] OVERVIFW

Group snapshot

Revenue

Revenue has increased by
over 82% in the last 3 years
frorm £390m in 2020 to
E712m in 2022

Energy generation

Our renewable energy
assets produce enough
energy tc power over
a million UK homes

Number of employees

We employ cver 1,690
pecple

Carbon offsets

Qur renewable energy sites’
carbon saving is over 822,600
carbon tonnes this year

Number of !.oéns

Over the year we
provided financing to, on
average 182 borrowers
in the UK

Number of sites

We own 220 renewable
energy sites spread
predominantly across
the UK
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Chief Executive's review

Qur Group was in & scid position corming out of

ion
the lockdown response wo Cov-d-19, and our
husiness has continued to perform rooustly
throughaut tre year. This year has seen some
urforecasied growtn i value of cartam divisions
primarily drven py the ncrease ik energy orces

Fern Trading Limited ["the Company” or together
with 1£s subsidiares "tne Group’) rargels consstent
growtn for shareholders over the long term, with a
focus on steady and aredictable growth, ths s

particularly important auring rmore challe

Salet
aconomic conditiors We Fave g civer:ified @
z beftting a
12 years of racing h story and amBbition, The Group

mature busines Croup win more thar

comgrises more tharn 200 companies trat bavae

operated in a rarge of ectors over many years
gererating steady long
sharehio

we expect (o perform stead ly

~tarm growih for our
Iders Weo operate n essentia. sectors tnat
throogs market

valatilty,

Frorm tnis secure base we have been able to add

ircremental exparsion and diversification in a

ressurec way

thro .gh seeling out opporiunities in

nevy adjacent sectors, These sectors prowvide us
ot Cont

with a plath nue o expamd in Line witn

our existing strategy. Today, our Group comonsas

eriergy, property le~ding, nealthcare infrastructure
fibre and nouse bulding dwisions. We have grown
to bz e signincant presence within cur most

g 4 "\C/
s anzhore wind

establisheo seciors, produ ci the LK's
gy cuipli gnd owlaing & £381lm short and
rredium term lend.ng husicess that fac.utates the
constructinr and improvercent of nomeg

roughout the UK

Tre Corrpary's share price dewverea 10% growth
over tne pazt 12 mortns, well anead Of our targer
of L oer atnur T he extracrainary growh

Yo O 2TErgy Sivis.on, wich has
C & ugmicant norease in long-tery
3

eriergy forwara rates

nfaton s

ircrease in the value of our energy divis'en was
supported by soid cperationat performance across
ali sectors and sore Crganic growth in newer

sectors

Ve rerrain 3 supportive ermpioyer, wilh reore than

1,630 full-tine staff acrass the Dusinesses that we
own and cpetate, and imdirect employment
provided for ~urdreds more oeagle througn

contracts that we have in place

A reflection on our year
Cur pusness raised £404m frorm irivestors this year,

wiile growing capital

gelivared corsist
20 LN i E712m in revenae

oyment, ré

9]

cnerated across the Group (2021 £425m) ard net

©

i
{
of £2,21%m (2021 21 888m restated)

Q)
5]
m

The financial s

operanng g;ro'v e fore tax of f.43n

axpected cucome of 3 srrall acco
ropust perdormance 5 & direct resull of erergy
Croc

B
duced vy tre grouo be: q sold for h'gher prices
dunrg tre year Almost 60% of ¢

Jar DLINMEsSs

COMonses renewah.e energy generaling asses such

as solar erergy sites and winc farrs, which crovide

long-term revenue strearms NEse are intent Cnauy

Lacross a range of technologies o it

a
agamnst poor performance na soeciﬁc secior and
coniribute towards steady, prewiciaple thare grice
growth, however, tneir values can stli be impacted
oy cnangas N pricing and dermand. We have seearn

consecutve ang materigl mcreases \'h lorwg terr
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Chief Executive's review

markets and starting corstruction on a largs wind
farrn in Austratia. At the start of the year we added
rina additional sites o cur reserve power division
wrich brings us up o 26 sites 1r total ([compared 1o
ter sites for most of 2021 Tnese sites have

of expeciaticns, generating
(2027 Elrn; durng the year.

perforrmed ahead ©

EBITDA of £ Er

Crar successfal and well-established hicmass

division cortnues 1o perform weail and has
delivered stable returns snce acouislion in 2015
This year. | have besen parvcuany ple e
strong perforrance at our newest biomass sier
Sneverton, East Argua, which was acquwec‘ ir Aor
2021, proving o oe a valuable

ousiness During the year we purchase

acdren to the

d a Waste-
to-Energy facility currently under Corstruction i
Ayrshre. Tne facility has beer in development for
three vears and will be capable of
185,600 tonnes per annurm of ngn-recyclable

DIQCeLs 'fj(' &r

nousehold, commercial and industnas waste which
woula otherwize be sent o landfll or exporied

Thus will generate 17 MWe of low carbor electricity,

ericugh to power 30,000 homes it wll be the first
arge-scale, subsidy free waste-1o-energy project in
western Scotlano and projected completion date ¢
i early 2024,

Over recent years, many of oLr erergy assets have
been under construct-on which nas contrbuted to
QU Previc L”l/ reporied accountung wosses This s
typica hrbusin
even when cash generative, because finance cost
and accounting charges, such as ceprecwaricm.

aiots growh ohase

@355 during

o

exceeded revenues. This division has now reached

our fargat size and sector sput,

Accord ngly this year { am please
accounting praft before tax of £48m against our
pudgeted small accountirg profit Tris slightly

gue to the maunty of

o 1o report an

larger than excectes uroht s
thie portiolic and higher energy prices; resutbng in
ncreased revenue frorm our erergy dwvision as well

as a0 increase n inflation (2s explaired nelow).

Dur property lending business
27% of tne Group and corrprizes thort and medium
term secured 0ans (o experienced property
orofess’ornals Thie established part ©F our businéess
cominued £ Jefform wel folowing & short pernod
slow down during Cov d-19 when we
intemt’orua\iy chose ¢ wrte fewer loans Our

averane

loan bhook was 182 0ans this year to Us borrowers,

d\/dl
toan 1o valu

Cur lend'ng nonas always oparated at
{below 7034,

crder that It mainta ns access 1o valuable 5ecurity if

conservative levals

:D

there 15 a reduction in prope-ty values This straeqy
has served the Grodn well simce incepuon 12 years
aro, end it has operated trough gericds of change
severa, lirmes The up s tak'ng a natu-ally
CALLIOUS approach wien assessing new lending

opportunties in laht of tne changing economic

cutook To aate, the Group has ert L2 2o of
sifice irception in 2010, suffering

rrack record

property loans
only £6m n Cagital losses,
's the result of our careful approach i th's secior,

This strong

comprising disciplined due diligence, conservative
wan-to-value ratics and an abiity and willingress to
reduce activ ty in this sector during wmes of
ecoromic unceraingy. We will contimue tw adop:
this approach throughout the coming yvear.

around 4% of the
Croup and s broacly pe-forming wel Our
retirement vilages business, Rangeford Holaings
Lim.ted ("Rargeord’) continued to sell apartments
at triree sites, cormmenced construction of a fourth
village in Chersey, and acquired a ffth location
~ear Cambridge auring the year. Sales at the

are expected to commenrce n 2024,

The healthcare divisicn maxes up

Cherisey sig
whie construction at the Camirdge site 1=
expected 1o start in 2023 with the first sales
cormrmencng in 2026

Our figre dision was established n 2615 and
rermains an area of growth for the Groue, now
compnsing of sx operating businesses. Cur

residenzial bus nesses, Jurassic ribre, Swisk F.bre,

IR e
STt e
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Chief Executive's review

Giganet and Allpownts Frore are budldng wlrafast
"ficre to the premises’ broackband netwerks in
regicns of the UK wnicr have been overlocked by
larger operators, Gigane: provides aornedidty to
homes and businesses across e UK using CityFiore

and Openreach nfrastrucrure arc Yink s a software

development company which has developed
proprietary scfiware (o aliow Internet Service
Froviders 1o sel conrectvity over wholeszle eranled
networks, Including Allpairts Fibre Vorposs is ie
LKz only dedicated enterpnse fibre netwerk 1o foous
on providing connectivity 1o businesses in London

N tre year, our residential Hhre ousinesses
corunwed 12 invest capita: In expancing ther

rewwcrks n tre Home Counties, the Scutn and
Southwest of England. and are now canboarding
cusiomers fa the'r netwerks,

revenues 1or

gencrating recuming
the Croup Qur siaic-of-the-art

nerworks are aple to meet cusiorner demana ‘or
kll{j‘-f
more working-ro

1er roadband speeds required a3 a rasult of

m-nome ard ncreased Lsage of

video-on-dermand services. In London, Yerboss has
als

O continues (o Bulc ang has installed over

500K of fitre with a comrmiment to offer 10TGERs

fhre 1o up to 15.C500 business
by 2027.

n Central Lonaon

Wrulst our ficre divisior rermamns ir 2 growth phase
for the next 2-5 years we do not exoect 't 1o report

an accounting proht

Towards te ard of the year, we acded 5 new
property deve
of Elivig Rormes ("Bl wia”) for £E85. Elvia s an

established house bulder devy Clﬂp.. 3 rmd market

fariy hortes in L

woner o tre Grop wth the acguisition

wondcn commuter wowns ard
wilages Whie nis represenis a very arna'l part of e

LAfOUD, wWe D an o grow it in a rmeasured way GVE
S

AU fve years witm an

uitrate wrget o delver
reludrg 200 hgn gua. by

S asuong esttmq

a
are Key 70 rurining tme cusiness

Inflation and Interest rates

The hgher rate of infator expenenced this year

nas peen responsiie for some of tre

cutperiorrance aga nst

CXpeCiatons n the
Company's share
high infatioriis Lk

nrice HM Treasury forecast tpat
ely tG be presert untit 025, a

result we expect o receve mare reverLe for the
energy genarated w-Anin Cur energy diviaien, and a

fngher value from tre government subsid.es that

zorne Sf our energy sites neneft Tom, Ncreasing

tre value of tnose sites However, a short period of
Frgh inflation such as forecast has very little eff
on ine ramwe at wh\m the Group is expected to grow
Thiz 15 because

cerve their valu

-
S

e renewd

& eneargy siies we 0w

2 from dizcounted ardjected futsre

casflow: over the ime they are expecied to
operate for, typicaily 20 years or maore. of the
oullook for tong-term irf.ation were © 'norease, the

impact or our share oree should be posiuve
because twoudincre

ase the revenue each of our
sites wouid exoect to raxke, Ir conTast G a

relatively fixed ost base

Tre expecied rize ninteres: rates 1§ forecast o

returr 1o normal efter a signhcant perod of very
lowr rates The irmediate impact o this on our

busress is expected to be Sroadly neutral since
aur Group s ine mt»ons‘iiy struciured 5o as Nl 1o
cant valde 705 on wh
awes change Waco
apgroach

rSing Irt

gxperence QI\__J”W SN INSrest

nuride to ake a cactious

withun our lending Business whiere the
erest rates are fel more closey, and we
have the gty o reduce the nuriber of 1oans
we write, or glter the rigk orofiie of our lbans

trrough reducirg laar to valle ratos of pausng

O

actv.iy .mcertan parts of ine market snowd that

feat Aoprognae
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Chief Executive's review

Current trading and outlook

Since thie year erd. the Group has continued 1o
pf—,rform steadly frorm an crperalicnal perspectie
and rlne witn cur expeciations albet we have

seer: share price growtn ahead of target due to the

continued increase i long terrm energy price

torecasts. Qur growth argets for the Group Over

the medium and tong terrm remain unchanged, and
we contnue o focus on mantainirg a dversifed

15 capatle of delivering rnore

preaictable growfh for sharshclders

ectray Gereratar Levy
ree Bl

The recently anncunced £:
withir the 2023 Fina

will mave an

mpact on tha returns enpra\ef‘ O CUr erergy
Don‘oi:o ver the next 5 years. This is further

tre group finarce review on page 27

Our property lending husiness centndes to
d deployment 1 this

focus on shert terr

erform strongly, w'ih increas
secior snce the year end. We
0ans jour loan terrm is 27 maonths;

wnich enaiies us (o adapt 1o changes 1Ir sutiaox

average curent

swiftly, we feel thus 1s particuiarly important in the

current economic climate.

Perforrrance in our heatthcare division cortinaes

to oo stable, 2nd we continuez to remam positve

aocout the opoortunties to improve performance in

Since year end, we have continaed © buald out cur
hore networks, w.th construc:kw Tacking in line
tons. We contiru

opportunizies for bath orgarc and

withr our expenrta e Lo raview
norganc
growth SUDLOING our existing managemeant earas

ri delivenng this strategy

I December 2022 we have acouired the nghts to

£25m right to use mob'le lcenses from Three
U=, ¢ mdkmg the first sten towards becoming an

mogile vrtuat network cperator

Our of business areas nas developed over e
and may evoive further over the years aheaa, driven
oy the

meetirg the obectves of our shareholders Theg
Ty \r:dlgatm =f a wholesale

MK

overarching Importancs we place on

T
should not be read as ar

change in the seciors Twe okerate, butas a

reflection of the role

I whic
played by the strateqic

mandate \n pratect ng sharenciders” interests,

"Qur mix of business areas has
developed over time, driven by
the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our shareholders.”
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Our business at a glance
What we do

Fern Trading Limited ("Fern’) s the parent cormgany

of nearly 220 subsidaries loget-er the "Grouc’ Our

Group operates acress five key areas. erergy,
hea..thcare lendirg, fbre and riouse buiding Cver

Fe pas: tweve ye

-we have built a care’uly

diversified group of operating businesses that are
well vositoned to delver long-term value ard

predictable growth for cur sharehoidars

i. Energy division
We qenergte cower from sustanable saurces and
sell the energy produced e ther

directly o industnaal

of aur
re~ewalie enargy sites quanfy for govermmer:

Consérs o o large retwaorks. Ma:

inCentives, whicn recresent an acditonai scurce of
ircome We rave aiso ubilised cur exparise -n
rerewable energy o C
ONGCINg operat.on. A y
218ites snder construcHorn.,

astruct facilities for sae o

rend the Group nad

2. Healthcare division

We grovde homes and leisere faclites to our
ageing population, ana pr vate hospitals which
provide high-gualty healthcars services across
=

in

operatioral 3 tes in e

Solar, wind,

3. Lending division
oWe lend on a short ard medium term, secured

i basis 10 a large number of property professionals
We glso provide financing o erable otner busingss
to puild assets ard other rezidential anc
commercial groperues

i 4, Fibre division

We own and operate fibre broadband natworks
ACross varous areas of the UK We builld the

P onetwor rig connect tnem to liomes and

bus 7esses 1o provids our customers with ulirafast
bre broadband

i 5. Home building division

P Duning e year we successtuly entered e Fo
puiding seciorn, acquinmg Flvig Horres wiich

strong track record of developing homesin g

sustairable manner The company 15 a ful service

property developer, mearing f provicas servizes
Dofrom the des g, © the engmeernig ar"rj thar final

corsiructor to ensure the daidvery of quality
Poworenanship

. Property lending, Retirement Ultrafast fibre . .
!ati;zﬁmzlaszs development villages, private broadband across RESIGESEE}LHOUSE
gas. financing hospitals the UK 9

reserve power

Coeratonal P Rtd Dowratars

.
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Our business at a glance

The sirergth of cur Group's strategy 18 1 both s
operational aversity and the refurn profile of these
pusinesses, Chr iending business provides flexibility
and strong returr s over the short term, while our
erergy. nealtncare, fibre and home ouading
divisiors oFer visioil oy anc stablity of returns over
the [orger term

The zca.e of our Tisine

Js o acquire large-scal
well s the opporiLnity @D enier new sectors with
mirir-al risk o the wrnole Group by s2lectirg

Sector split’

Wirg 22% .

Sclar 20% - 7

Reserse power 6%

69%
31%

Owning and operating assets
Lending

Other 3% 7

Fern's sector
allocation

tusinesses with comprehensive business plans and
strong management teams This enables us to

contmue to diversify our business without
comprem sing on the gualty o our operations
Cwver the past three years, we have successfully
eniered the fibre croackbard sector and we now
Own aix companias with exciing plans to deliver
Litrafast broachand across the UK

- Healtncare 1%

- Property 27%

~- Reserve power 2%
--Sclar 1%

~- Flore 5%

- Heaithcare 4%

s -Landhl gas ard biomass 9%

‘Sector spli s giver: by value, as reprecsented on the company oaiance sheet of Tem Trading Limited.

<
T
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Our business at a glance

Whare we Operate

We are proud that the busresses
within our Group rmake a pesiove
contripation to society. from :
generating clean erergy to the %\ i
creation of hemes and the proviZion

of auality healthcare infrastructure /‘_

_>,,

b

S :

Nﬁ“?‘;‘ei

S
il !J

OB E- @

"
H

Fbre networks

(1‘]
L
[4)]
Ly
[
3]

i
O
7

b}

.

AS WeE'VE Qrown OUr experTiie it ‘He - weve peen ang o use oL indusiry Nowedge W

t
tave our exoertse 12 exCting Cooortun Ues Overseas, 1mC.ucing consructng soar and wend farms e

C

o
Austraca, France, Irelang, Poland



Our business at a glance

Malking a difference
We are proud to operate a GroLp that ma«es a
iety across the UK,

gpmﬂra NG renewable erergy. provading cuality

cositive contrhLticn o s

thcare infrastructure and refirerrent Iving and
delvenng high-speec broadpand (o underserved
areas of 1ne country,

Energy

We currantly own 220 crergy sites, precucing
37ECW 3 year That's er
a milion homes

oLgh energy 1o power over

Cur combiration of technologies. solas, wind,
rasarve power, piomass ard ardfii gas
comolernent each otner well, heping the L 1o
meet 'tz energy targets irrespoctive of the weather,

The

ern C Cmmunsty Furg s a soc.el entergrise run
oy the G

FFOUD, WHICH woOrks 10 gisTioute cammunity
5 genefate-d from cur wind farms. This year, trig
Ferr Commu \ty Furg nas awarded £1.4m @ loca:
commarity groups, supported 13 tocal university
students tirough our Student Scnolarsh'p Furd,
and provided a wirnter fuel subsidy 1o 706 resicents

who are iocal to the Group's assats

Healthcare
Gur retirement viliages provide high-auality,

:omtemporarv lving spaces, with 379
accornmaodation unie currertly in
schemes T Vanous

over 500 add

stages of devel

tional accommocato

>
c

3,
n

A friendly communr!;y s at the heart of cur

retiremert vittages, which s why in our
developments we provide central facilines and a

hiub of social actvity for our residents,

Lending

The loans we mrade during the year have helpec to

fund the construction of student accornmadation
and miuch needed rezidential properties.

We contnue o exterd loans to 24 tax drivers and
fleeis to erable thern to use eectrnic vebicles,

reducing carbor emissions in our capial

Fibre

Througr our ficre division we are bulding out the
fibre optic broadband network acress the LK. Four
of our manageme-t teams are focussed on

rks for

bullaing cut hiore opfic broadbana net
residential customers ana small busiresses, ard a

fAfth s oulding a ‘or< to deliver enterprise
connactivity. Our sixth s 3 <o
carspany opearatng in the fib
providing services

fibre netv
flware develooment
re sector and

YO OLr QroLp Companies.
Withir tris division we have nlans (G creae a

network providirg connectiviy 1o over one reillion

properuss in the next tnree years, many of which
are in small towns and villages that con't currently
have access to internel connectivity fit for modern

ways of workerg and con mu”icanng.

Not enly are our fore businasses bringing
connectivity to underserved communities, they are
aiso generating employment opporturities for
yourg mdividuals via tra ning academies and
appreniceshio
Telacorns, with one of our comoarigs havirg

scnemes, and are driving diversity 10
launched a nurmber of Niiatives o recruit women
into the secor.

Home building

ur horme bullding diision dtilises a high
proparaon of sustairabie timber frame corstruction
mrethods and instans air scurce heat purps in ad
propertes, leaomg the way in this sector and

helping reduce caroon emissions.
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Our strategy in focus

Cur businesses

Energy
Trarougn cur energy dvision, the Group owns anda
operates energy sites which supply gas and

electncity nto the network, a3

z well s construcing
renewatile energy sites for futre sae. Of the 220
energy sites that we own and aperate, 194 provide

renewabie energy, contrinuling to the Group's
positon as one of the argest pmrmcmr of
renewsble energy from corrmercial scale sclar s.ies
in the UK. Energy sites are typicaly expected to
gererate swabwe profits for many years, as such
these busir esses is atiractive

to tne Group because of thelr patetial 1o

owning ard operating
dr‘ ey
predictaile profits over the lorg torm

Renewable energy stes generatc power from

susta‘ranle scurces and sell energy produced either

directly o large industrial consumers or to the
nemwork. Man

aual fy for govern

y of Qur renewatle energy sies alse
ertincentives, win . resuds ma
portion of the generated energy benehtrg from
rates that are
& qualifying
been granted This a5 reduced some of tne

“ocked in' for @ specihiea perod once
site s operatona, and accred ation has
gact
of tme valatulity i long-terrm enargy proe forecasts

As new sies built in the UK do not guaify for

hy

storic government :NCenUVes, We dare seemnsg rmore

tke the cres we owri

atng energy stesis a core part of
sr 60X of
of qur Q up nas

s curr::nrfy matkes un al
tassets Thispa

Did you know?

enerated nigrer returns this year tha expecle
Le o rmarkat conditors &

k{”

Ut cruciatly it has the

Q

potential b provide stabie e

rrs over the ufrg—

term Tris combinat
balancs ngk and vet
activitios to generate target retuns fo

"Our energy sites generated over
3,750 GWh of power.”

Due to the nigh-quality erergy sites wa owr, we
are aole o secure long-term inancing frorm
rhainstream barks at competitive rates to enrarce
cur retdrrs, wnich Relps us 1o dejver the level of

returns our srarenoldars expec

Wrile our renewstle energy business started e
the solar eneray sector the Group has bu lt
exoertise across other adiacent technclogies
mciud'ng cnsirore wing, bicmass and landfil gas.
supported by res
bac<up power (o the Natona!l Gria The Group

erve power piants whrch grovide

tnerefore beretts from dwersiicaton wehin ths

since weaker condiions for

pdrt of its busines

Instrorger grod
gains significant serefit from its seat
as our DLAINess s spread across over 220 sies,
vastly reducing ine nsk to G if

site suffers ar operat’'onal gisruption

Croup profabilicy |

one

If laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from

London to Mexico City.




Our strategy in focus

I addition to our UK sites, the Group 1s develoning
sites overseas o jusdictions that we understand
well These present an attractive opportdnity as they
puid on cur sectar expertse N countres at ar
earlier stage of renewable development Currently
we opergle wind farms in Irelang and France and
solar sites in Frarce and Austrata We nave several
wind stes under construction in Poland, France

and Australia

Durrg the year we acauired rine reserve power

plarts and one energy from waste site. Following
construciicn, we sold two wing farms in Finland and
shiarily after the year end we alse sold Darington

Point, a large solar e in Austraiia

Heaithcare
Throwgh our haalthcare division, the Group

ocperates in tne private medcal and retirernenrt «iving
sectors Our ret rement lving business
owns and operates two setirement s
das curr

thres further sites for future C

Wiltshire ard North Yorksture an
developing

Cur private medical business, One Healt~care owns
and oper two private haspitals in fent anc
Hertfcrdshwe, providing the very best leve!l of care
omoderr, well equippad hospita. faciites,

Sirce returning 1o normas working patierns we have
seen an ncrease in the number of patients payirg
for ther own treaiment as trey face lorg wating
Jsts for NHS treatmeant Despite the Uing of
widespread restrictions across the UK, Covid-19
the acJte care sector with a

ontirues to affect

stressea NHS and rorezsed mmfection control

ezsdres that remain ir p.ace.

Lending

Lending continugs 1o o
and has provided the Gro
cash genaratve sacior over the past twe

This well

e a core part of our busness
up with a prof ’Wtdd and
Ve years
-established part of our Group mainly
conzists of property lending, whicn provides
snort-terr financing to experienced professional
croperyy developers, buy-to-let lanclords seeking
and deveopm
which provides short and medium term financing

oricg'ng finance, ant Tnancing,

to companies

and o the
JZin this sector iz our

A key bereft of the scaie of cur Group
susiness that we have bt
ability to mingate nsx througn having a large
~umber of short and med um tem loans spread
across small projects to ndividuat borrowers. We
croactively rmanage counierparty risks through

dndertalkeng careful borrower due diigence, taking

“Lending continuesto be a

important part of our

business and has provided
the Group with a profitable
and cash generative sector

over the past twelve years.




Our strategy in focus

‘werurlty OVET assets

t charge basis
e ioan-to-value ratios,
red ang (hese

and mantane NG Conse T val

U
I

Mot alt loans will perform as

mreasures nelp o minim.se the mpdct

performgros 13sues or an indvicua. loan T s

further ritgatec througn the value trat we lena to

irdividual borrowers,

which s carrently spread on average across 182
er

or
or
loansz, with an average imavidual lean of £2 2

Fibre division

Our fibre division includes five operationat
comparies bulding fibre netwerks in the UK and
ore software developmant cormpary

Trrougs our residental “itre bus.resses, we are
bukding new physical ibre natworks for
communites in the UK and so far have bulit out

fbre infrastructure in underse-ved parts of Devon,

somierset, Dorset, Wirshire, Hampshire,
Worcestershire and the Faome Counties, We are
arning to pass aver cre mikan homes guer tne
rnext three years

Building nese large n2tworks nvowes Conrecirg
large daacentras and @epnerne exchianges in the
UK win homes and businesses, effectively

reclac g the copper wres tnat were faid 1In tre Srat
faif of the 20t century Jurass.c, Swish and

Giganet are verhica.y irtegrate

., az they both own
rnd also

ire fikre infrastruciure a
cusomer relationskhio 23 the intarne: service

ve (Me enc

reative 1o aur 10%al loan book,

P oprovider or TISPT Alpoints owns fibre nfrastructure
P oand wild onboard other ‘SP to tne Allpoints retwork
to sel connectivity to the end cusomer

Trrough Vorboss, we are culdng a netwaork n
{Lordon 1o supply business-to-businass CEZE"

enterprise connectivity direct 1o Busires
Iocustomers Vorboss ras instaled over 50Ckr of
! fbre opuc cables ce 2020 and has
Ghos product to

N

n Lordon sin
recenily launced a single 10
marxel. recognising that ambinous London

o

s restes will cuickly «ecuite micre than the LGhos

conneclyity they've relied on o aste

ave seen a0:d arowtn in our fibre d

nd we expect this division 0 continue

arcer part of cur busingss over time,
Tre Group expacts 10 sperd approxmately £1bn
cagtal by 2025 to fulfitits bunld oiars and reach

more commurities in need of ult-afast broadband

Home building
Cur new home puitding cuzingss, Elivis s a ud

service nousehuloer, acquing land, aevelo the
ate and subseguenty seling the homes to

m x of ooen
mar«et and affordabie houses and suive o deliver

rdviduat buyers Trese stes include a

high guality asgirational homes Tre business is

grow\'rag fast w
i E250m ang €00
within the rext 2-3 years

ol prqected ammat wrnover o
t per year forecasted

nouses bu
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Directors

The experienced Boara of Directors for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company’s
business activities to sharehclders. They have a set of complementary
commercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills.

Pawd Latham 7 -«

Paui s Cnief Executive of Fern and 15 responsible ‘or the day-to-day running of the
ousiress Ma is also a managing drector of C,Jctf pus Invesiments Limriteg ('OI7,
where he has worked since 2005 O s a key supplier of resource and exper

to Ferr Pauls dual role ensures that this relatonship works effectivety and :n the
Dest nierasts of Ferm's sharenalders, Paul has had vanous general rmanadement

and intecnal consulting roles acress a number of sectors and orngs with vim

a wemith of industry and business axperience

e eith Willey o Do e Loalman
Keth 13 an associate professor of strategy anc entreprenaursnip at London
Busiress School He alzo holas various non-exscutive directorsh ps and advisory
roles at high growtn ard more mature comparies In s role as non-executive

chairman ke s responsible for the effective operation of the Board, as well

as its goverrance He brings to the Tern business independent commerciat

experience gained trom fis time n acaderria, private eguity investment,
consulting ana variods hands-on operatonal -oles

Petar Barlow ~ 0 "0 oo do
Peter has r 3G years exper ence i international financirg of infrasruciure and energy
As a senor execltive for International Power, Peter was responsible for arrangng over
S1Zon of project and corporate fundng, as well as nanking retationships and tressury
activities, He has spent over 20 years working internaicnaly for HSBC, Bank of

menca and Nomura, financing acguisiions and greerield projects in ne energy
and Irfrastructure sectors. His compination of Board-level dnancirg and erergy
SXGenence OVer NUMerous energy sub-seciors, and his al-round krowledgs of
all the sectors In which Fern operates, adds significant value to the cperatior of
tre Board as wed as 15 strategy formation and depioyment

Tim Arthue oo e

Tirm 15 a charterad accountant with more than 25 years' international expearerce
g finance diractor of both punlic and private companies. intially he waorked
for Price Waterhousa 0 Birrmingham and Chicago More recently he was Chief
Financial Officer of Lightsource Renewable Energy Ltd, a gicbal leader in the
fundirg, development and long-term operation of soar photovoltalc projects
Tim £rings extensive financial and accountancy knowlcdge to the Board as
well as an understanding of dynamic technology bLsinesses gained from bis

executive positions




2 | STRATEGIC

REPORT

Principal risks and uncertainties

Principat rislks

Management identfy, assess and marage risks I The principal risks that the Group are exoosed to

associated with the Group's busness objectves and are gescribed below, alcrg with the mitigating

sirategy Risks anse from external saurces, those actions we take W reduce the potential impact of
ch are INherent cormmierdia risks in the market, 1 tne sk, We also incluoe our assessment of whetner

anc rom operaticra, nsks contamed within the tre likelihood of the risk has ircrezsed, decreased

yiiems and processas employed within the or remained the same

business. Overall nsk exposure is managed acress

e Group through the diversification of activ tes,

botn by sector and geography

Risk
Market risk:

The energy seciGr s expeniencng
significant turoulence and tnere s
a risx that "orecast leveis of income
are not achieved due te chang
wholesale eneqgy pnces, off-
contracis or governmert subsidies
Cue o ths turbulent eryvircnment,
tne potentat for Increassd
Nterventon by the regulator s a.50
3 s

Changes in Coverriiment policy
Mgy el 7 reaucad moome

srreams witmin the grous aue to
Eddi uma!

Operatlonal rlsk

Leveic of energy produced may
ke ower thar anhicipatec due to
sup-cptral weather conditons
Or pErorTance ssdes with
equiprment, wh.ch may result in
s 'canr wrrp.a aed downtirre,

Fmancnal risk:
Revenuegs from ene fcy

onger or 5 more CO:nEy’ tham
artcipated due toresgource
gvadiablity or imcreazed cast of
ravs Tate

Energy Division
Mitigations
» Contracts are entere nicn fx the inccme for a
pornion of the energy gererated by Cur sites

« Long-term gove nment backed offiake agresments ars
111 place, such as the Renewable Qoligatcrn Cerrfization
{"ROCT scheme 30% of our enargy intome was
generated fraom ROC revenie,

« We engags with 1 ‘v.omrmw.t ana the Office of Gas ard ”%“
Eiactricity Markers [OFGEM'S to cortrisLte o an irdustry vaice
with polizy makers wino set fufufe requlatony reguirermerts.

IR RURN

JRETEE

R

Increassd
ftiue to mnarket
netability)

. Lnprec ciabibty of the weather s mugared through
dwversificauon of technologies and iocat on of sites.

« Regular servicing of assets s undertaken (o ensure assels iy
are keptin good condtion and rroonimise the nsk that

No Charge
assets are uravailable for a .onger penod o Cnangs

L

NaYemenT ensures orvy a small por e Grouo’s
as3ets ar o revenues are expected to be dernved from

CVerseas $ites,

" |u«’E*’TI'—“’W(J

NIracls with cortrariors

$Jre to Increasing costs. o
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Risk Mitigations Change

e pwnan 5 ee bttt 5 i ke 3 B D A e B 1 s 2 o e s e ko S

Market risk: « Managemertreqgularly reviews tne compettive landscape
Expected sales from cusiomers in target puild areas to ensure plans do not conflict with
arewower than ant Cpated due o otner alterrative nelwors operators.

tn M

ncreased comoetit.on from ctner -« Managemeriérgages Ofoacf_wely with the Office of
provigens Comrmiumcations and the Government to ensure the

benefits of srraller c;ﬁfators are weil undersiood and s Increaced
interests are acproo anted. lGue o rnore
We are an active participant in relevant industry bodies, COMPELTOrS in

‘ ) the market)
particuiary those representing alfernative network '

A chargein policy oy ine
reguLlators ir favour of large-
coerators cou'd \mpaﬂ rdr abitity
to deliver planned developrnent,

ly reores

reducing reversles and efficenc.es ooerators
gained from a larger presence in a i
Ddrl’ (_ular area. i
Constructmn rlsk = The Group has cortacied witn a numnes of differert
Conztruction of the network supplers to reduce the exposure ta any one mdividual
takes forger of i More cottly entity, Selecton of outsource partners is rranaged increased (due
than anticipated due to resource through a detaked procurer-ent process with long tenm o (ncjeas‘\rwg
avaiizbiity or irCreased cost of V:Sib.hty of work allowing partrers 1o plan financial and ?fsrgigge%r
ra materials, pesple rescurces accorﬂ\r*g\v the sector as
. Whers Su;’lpl‘y’ cnam o oblerms gre exper ~reg for critical alternative
Hermns our teams genpraw have 6 months stock of fibre pro'r\ji%tg;?;f:ale
duct and other matenals ¢n hand, and edvance order el

ca'-h"\r A ECL pmem \NIH” Lcrg lead t\meC

Operational risk: . Our mefwork; are bu| tin a resilient way with divarse

Network service is interrupted or route opfions should a failure OCCur in one route R
uirel able leading to potential ioss This, comgined wth an ability to dentiy and resolve -

of cuztomers and reputational conrectivity 'ssues gquic<ly, minimises downtmes of the No change
Udrﬂagml rnetwores

SaLE %ﬁﬁg
RN BNy
E:Ms';;(;ua& ik Therhan s e
ERRBIRE Rt bty wvgmszm.*gmmiwwwwﬁ}? PR e

Hastee s s e m;g*:mg:’fgggg,&:* e e

+ i = o

St e e el

B e
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk Mitigations Change

Market rish: . Tne tearns prr"facrweiy' mar‘agﬂ our potf on i e
Ir\creaswrg inflation ard irterest rmarketpiace and are predared to enforce whers neeged if

ates lead 1c & market-wide a loan moves o defadt

affordabylity 155ue, resulting in a + Our loars are made at consernaive lagi-to-valle (LTI m
drep In prose-ty values across ail ratuos with g max.mum LTV of 70%

NO change
sectors cf real estate This may -

mpact our asility o recover a
inar in full through a refnance

cr _.a!e

Counterparty rlsk « Lloansaes cyredq airst phsical uricerlying secunty,

Loans rnay be made o unsutable suCh as a charge over tha property Gr otner assets of the

coanterperiies, imgacting our orrower Tnese are typicaly on a first charge basis o

ability to recaver the loan baiance ensure manmum chance of recoveary shoyla enforcemert %

i full actorn oo needed, ) . ;

. . ncreased fdue
o Thorougn due dugence is performed prior 10w ting ta unetanle

loans. mcwding property o iand valuaions ard credn [Slaigstagle
checks done on borrowers. Zlimaie)

o Whare wars are writter for assets under construction.
milestones and covenants are putin placs 1o enture
sraaes are ZOmoete pnor re(‘mmhg Farther d'a 'O/‘wm

, . Healtheare/Home Building Bivisions .
Risk Mmgat;ons Change

Market risk (Healthcare and . F\ann.n »omm* o urﬂdeveu’)ocd {ana are colmsed 0

Home Building): maxirr.se revenues anc reducs the nisk of (05523 o sae %
Afalr house prices could Incressed idue
mpact our aolity to generae to urictable
expected revende f-om the sale SCOromic
of agartments In our retrement cimatal
vMauC\, zra houses buit by Elivia.

Construction risk {(Healthcare » Tae Group eners ﬁ>ed orice contracts where apprepriate

and Home Building): to reduce exposure o -noreasing mater al costs —
Constwc:‘cn takes 'onger or + Tre Grouo only works with reputab.e 3rd parties with 2 e

S rore Costy thar anng pated strong track record of detvenng sirvar projects NG cnange
due 10 resource avalaciaty or

o o5t of N Nate

Health and Safety risk o Tre Group mariains rooust rocedures

(Healthcare): relabng WG the prov sion of m e rey 2w this

Trie orevention oF gy o throasa conducting regular nerms tors and are

avoidable loss of 1:‘&1- of our also subrert to externa. inspecticrs by regulatory bod g3 —
cater1s1s of Jtmost srporance + T7he Group Fas insurance coig e ce G cover A
ard s cnvcal o Aur‘ta nrg a firarae losses due to medica! maapract.ce clams N charge
GOOC ragLiation. Lugation as

a

resylt of fﬂed- a mdlp'armce
could resull ndamage o

ey ! oo




Risk Mitigations

Market risk: « Where floating rate dect is i place iwhere initerest vares
Arincrease 'n base rates may in line with an underlying cenchmark ratel, the Groug %
increase costs on debt facittias, eners ‘Nto hedging arrangements 1o fix a portion of these nereased
mpacing tne Groug's aility to pavments througnout the term of the facility. Hedging ‘due to rse In
service debt as it falls due. arrangements are cutlkned in MNaote 21 of the financial nterest rates)
siatemerts,
Liquidity risk: » Adetalled cash flow forecast s prepared and reviewsd
Poor ranagement of cash w-thin by ranagemenrt on a moninly bas's, iINcorporating cash
the Groug could impact the avalabiity and cash requirements across the Group: On at
Group's abiity to meer ohigations least a quarterty bacis th s is shared witn the Board
as they fail cue. « The Group rroniters bark covenants on an ongoing basis
serence to covenarns. Where N
covenants can't be met, forecasts are updated {or the No change
lower cash availab.e as a res.lt of the restactionr
» The Group has a ‘lexioie finance faciity which ¢an be
drawn on at short notice o mesetmmeciate ousiness
reeds
Heaith and Safety risk: « We have deve.oped rebust health and safety policies iri
Tre safety of cur employees compliance with 15045001 across the Group tC ensure
and *hoe employed mrcugh the weil-being of our staff.
contracts are of pararrount « Health and safety rainng s provided o our sta®f and
impoertance There s 2 nsk that cortractors on a regular bas's
acciderts in tne workpiace could
result in serious injury or death.
Cyber Security risk: o We employ a Chief Informacen Security Ofcer ['CISCGT)
An attack on our iT systems and who is respons ble for data securty across the Grous and
dats could lead to disruptior reports quarterty to the Board. —
of cur operations and icss of « The CISC works closely with Gur businessas (o ensure ]
cJustomer datad Loss or misuse adeguate standards of secunty ana informaticn No ¢crange
of data may result r reputauonal management are met

damage, reqgulatcry action urder « Fach of cur businesses that nold custorner data nas ther
GOFR and potertia! fines own dedicated resource for iT and security

The sirategic report was approved oy the Board of Directors on 16 Dacember 2022 arid s

I

ned on it behalf oy,

PS Latham
Cirectar
16 Decemicer 2022

[
Lazpdie
L
i
Jeid 1
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Corporate governance

Section 172

The Boara consider that they have adneres 1o the

{1} staterment

requiremeants of section 172 of tne Comparues Act
2006 (the "Act'] and have 1r geod faith, acted ina
way 1nat would be most ikely 1o oromote the

success of the Grouc “or the tenelit of its meTibers

stakehoiders
matters sef out in section 172{1Ha-f of the Act)

as a whole (having regard (o ay

in thie decisions take
30 June 20272

r dunng the year ended

I the performance of e duty t© oromote the

success of the (,:rmzp the Board has regard tc a

number of matiers, inclugding the uxely

corsequearice Cf any decisions in the ong tert, and

lztens to e views of the Group's key stakeho:ders

(‘r

1 Budld trust and ensure it fully understands th
potential imipacts of the decsions i makes. The
Board ‘Uifils tnese duues partiy by delegaticn o

committees and the boards of subsidary

urdertakings, wine operate witiir: a Corgorate
Te fr

governance framewaork across the Group.

At evary Board rmeating a review of health and
safety across the group, financial and operaticral
performarce, as well as legal and regulatary
compliance, is Lnderaken. The Board also review
arrer areas over the course of the Arancia year
Growp's business strateqy,
stakeholder-relaed mavers, diversity and inclusiy ™y,
anvirgnmerial matters, corpo

nciuding tre <&y risks,
= resnansibiity, ard

covernance, cormpliance and egal matters

Principal decisions

We define princ pa’ decisions taken 0y the Board
cis:ers tnat are cf a strateg © nature and
sigrificant to ary of oL key stakerolder
groups.  ne Beard c-tf‘u;ic'er tnat the foltow:ﬂg arg

rs it made " ke year

Evawatirg ard Geciging "o maove aheas wein
CCrEEsIng WiInd operations, which s part of

our reqewab.es divis o n August 2021 tre

Group acquired a large scale, ready o corstract
wind site i Australa This deployment aligns
with the Group’s strategy to continue ©
davelop rerewanie energy sites which orovide

217 reverye streams, T hie

predictatie, long-:
Board considered the oppoartunity and tow it
aigned with cur cbject ves 1o ma<e a pesitve

contricution to the commurty and ervironrent

» The G(C-u.c (Jecided 2 expand into
ChVESIGT, widing in May 2

quired F_‘.'ma homes, a full-service praparty

developer, providing servces framn tne desigr,

our newest

—

022 the Group

to tre engreerirg and then final corstruc
to ensure the delvery of q:,ailt‘v womﬂamhn

Diversifying the Group's asset base and enterng

inte this new secior has been weH thougtic
Sul with long term growt in minc. The Board
zzsessed the strateg . opoo-tun tes within the
sector before deaiding tC movea atead with s
acguisiion, consicer ng Now this woula impact
exI15t:Ng busimesses within the d

it aignag witn the

ViSon ano Nowy
Group's strategic obectives to
detver long-term value and predictable growh
for our sharehoudears.

+ Reviewing ana deciding 1o move ansad wih
increasng biorrass oparations which i part of
Qur .'e";ewabtes civson In October 2027 the
Group acqguired a large scawe, waste-to-enersg,
canstruciien site i Scetand Tois deoloyment
aligns with the Groun's strategy to continue o
dwersify the Grouo, develop renewable energy
sites which arovige pred-ciahle, long-term

evenue streams, ang provide resiience aganst

wholksale pr crg ﬁathS

e UK erergy
pp@rtm 8%
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« Thet
tender process for the year ended 30 June 2022
snce the

yoars decided to change audit firrs via a
The Group had chang
orevicIis alaitors were appointed and therefore
T the vaue for

d sigr ficantly
we were Unshe to reliaby awses
Toney we received, Three firms underweant
the tencer process and Erost &
selecied because

unaerstanding of

& Young LLP were
e of ther strong commercial
cur business, efficent audit

mettodoiogy and value for moneay.

Business strategy

Cur business strateny i3 s2t out on pages 11
the Strategic Report. Managemert pre
detailed Group budaet which s ag

to 14 of
epares a
proved by the
Boarg on an arnual nagis and forrms the bacis for
the Group’s resource planning and dep
decisio decisions concerning th
business pian, tre Board has regard first and

oyrner
ons. In making
forerrost to its strategic focus, L.t also o other
matters such as the nterests of it var.ous

dthe lo

staxenolders an ng-term irpact of 1ts

actions on the Group's future and reputation.

Shareholders
Snarehcleer relat:ions and generating shareholder
value is a key consideration when the Board 15
making siralegic cecis.ens The prme mecium by
which tne Group communicates with sharehoders
15 through tne annual report and fnarcizl
statements, which arr {1 provice sharenolders witn
a full understanding of the Group's activities and its
razuits. This information s published on our website
at www.ferntrading.com.

Employees

The Group's errployees are fundamenial 1o the
overalt success of the business. The Directors fulfl
therr duty to employeas
subsidary Boards whicn the Chief Executive «
Croup also sits on

by entrusting oversignt G
of the

The directors of the subs.diary uncertaxings
mariage the day to day decision making,
ngagement and cormmaunications with employees

-.d fa%r\y and are
v, be snditions.
We fuly realse that cur empt oyees wish o be
on matters affecting ther

and ersure that peo
valued with

J

ple are treat

Tans Lo

respect t

informed and consulted ©

work anc 1o be rvonves 1n problem-solving
affectng ther own areas of -nterest and

responsibilty Thne Group s firmiy commis

policy of good communicat'on at all levels

ai' to establism 3 cumate whic constatly

ericourages tne open flow of irformation and

2as. Presently tnz incluoes maonthy team briefings
at a local level and iIcation of rnorthly key
performance indicators covaring oulput, operating

Costs, ang health and safety

the publ

The health and safety of cur employees in the
workplace $ a contnual focus for the Group, ven
its broad operadional business The Direciors review

T

fealth & Safety Reporting a1 each board meeting o
Jdre appropnae pol
0 protect the heaith ard safety of our
emplcyees and cortractors Where there are
cefciencies or issues, these are foilowead
up and resolved on a tmely bas s, with the 3card

having overs'ght of the actions taken

catentia. g

The Groun

cof certain opera

cutsources actvites ang mnaragement
b()r’.ul
Where activities are outscurced the Board ensures

acuvities to external supphers.

that they are managed by reputable supphers who
meet all the relevant industry and reguiatery
commitments as well a3 treating errp.oyees fairly.
Expected standards are documented in all service
contracts and adherence to tnese are continually
moritored by Board thraugh their service

agreement with Octopus investments Limited

Suppliers and customers

The Groug acts in a fair manner with all supp.ers

and customers and seeks to mamtan strong

business relaticnships witn them This is achieved

by all contracts being negotiated through a farr and
ansparent tender process which includes

assesing the impact on the long-term obiectives of

EHE-I
ATyn ha

b s epee
Tipaia

t
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tre Group. We review Our paymen: process g
times 3ga:nst contracts every six mornths tc
suppliers are pald prompily and this irformat
the comuoany is available cn the www.gov.uk

arglyre

ton for

weDsite,

The Group ensuras i acts farly and in a ransparenit
mariner to ali custormers aress all drasionrs and
services, and actively engages (o resclve any disputes
or defauits The Board closely moritors customer

metros and engzges with the maragement team w

understand the ssues if business perforrmanca does

NoT Mmest cusiomers expeciatons

L.rited
s partner and suoplier witn

"re Boara considers Octopus invesimen

to be a key busine
resoonzibility for e provision of operational
finanuiat acrministraton

oversignt anc Company

secrelaria. services,

Community and environment
Tne provision and operat-on of sustanan'e

irfrastructure s at the cenure of the Croup's
strategic goals Through its business achvites the
Cxoup eeks (0 make a positive controuton o the

CorirmLrity,

rerewable

eryvronment ard econormy ou”
znergy business 1s helping the UK mear
Is renewable energy targets, our private hospitals
have supported the M—b throughout the Cov d-19
pandernic by providing treatment for ron- Covid-29
NHS patents that otherwise could met have beer

carried out, ard our fibre networ< wil give peop'e

spzead

irs rural comimunities access to hign-
broadopanc

Business conduct

As Directors our ntenion

ersanng managemaet o

of canduct and governance expected of a business
such as ours Qur intertion through cur ousiness
strategy (outn ied on pages 11t 14) 55 1o operate in

< with other businesses that share

Business ethics and governance
Tre Board s respons:tbie for ensaring tnat the
activities Ad 1tz vanous businesses are

conducied in compilance with the law and

of the Grolp a

applicatle quiatory ragimes, ard
i adherence with preva'lling best pracuce for the

e gavernarice and re

relevart mdudstry, Trig incudes reviewing shiermal

cortros, eNsurng that there is an apprepriate

balance o skl
card, ang ensuring (hat the firancial staterrents

s and expenerce represasted on the

give 3 true and far view of the state of affars of the
Groun Further detail can be found i the staterment
of directors responsibilities on pacé 2% in the yea

to 30 June 2022 no areas of corcern have been
flagged i s regard

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

The Board's paiicy an employee, human rights,
soc:a, and community 15sues, environrent policy

and anti-corrupton and bricery matters

N me Directors Report on page 25 Tne Boarc
actively promotes a corporste culiure that 1s based

or, ethyvzal values and behaviours.



3 GOVERNANCE

Group finance review

Bayiew of financizl statements

The purpose of tnis report 13 [0 provioe addihiora

explanatory informanon o1 e financial statements
7 measurirg our oerformance, the Francal
rnezasures that we Lse incude those inat bave been
derved om Gl reported resulis 1N order o
eliminate factors tnat dizior: year on-year

comparisons, Trese are considered rnon-GAAR

naarcal rnessures

A reconciliation of these to the firancial resulis can
Ce fourd in note 28 f the nctes to the financial
staterments

The hranc'al statements s-ow aszets at cost, as such
hey do nct reflect the future vatue that we expeci to

derive from these Dus’nesses To that exten:

accouning performance may differ materiaily frorm

the share pricé anc may r i@nges in the
full marke: vawue of assels cr businesses owned by

the Group.

A nurber of acquisitons were mMade during the
year nciuding nine operat.onat reserve Cower siies,
site under construczion, a

awaste o enargy

Constractinn ready wind farmon Australiz and
sevanteen solar rooftop sites uncer construction.,
Juby 2022, we sold
ar site i Austraua

Shortly afier tne year ena, in
Darungton Point, a arge so
cort conurLed expanson, we nad Duidt wp
erves at year end of £258m which

O
%]
j -
=]

included
nflow of £97m from placing extermnal

r@fr\aﬂr;img in Dartngior Poirt pror o sale

(restated} Movement

2022 2021

£'000 £'000 £000 %
e i R P e

194.;;6 1_611 e

Proft foss) before tax 7 47604 ' (2z 663) 70 267 sion
ending l;;;a;m of 'Jxrmo‘;'\;:”o‘mm ~ 3sp901 385, 512 Casiy
_n_ T 256,418 T172.478  sion
Netrdeot 793,169 699,440 93755 13%
Netassers 2219448 1,887,842 3607 18%

Financial performance
Overal,, the Group has repored a profit before tax of
E£7 6 for the yvear ended 20 June 2022, which i a
£70 3m imorovement on the prior year (2021

E2Z2 7 loss restatea). Overall EBITDA ircreased by
87% to £195m (2021 £:04m restated;, which is
primarily due to increased energy gereraton as well

Revenue incraassed by £287m to £7/12m (2021

‘Earnings before interest, wax, depreciat-on ard amortization

£425m) which was precominantly driven by & 84%
ncrease in revenue within our energy division. Thus
growtn is two fold, increased energy generation

from having owr}ed/operateu one of our DiIomass

plants

Australia reaching ComimIEsionng
iNCrease 1N average energy ¢
match between suogly and demand,

to the mis

far the full year and a large

solar plant in
and a significant
rces over the year gue

exacervated oy the ongoing confict in Ukraine.
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Revenue growtr was strongest ir our energy
dwvison but we asc saw a marked imiprovernent in
reveriue from our retrement villages. Tris part of

our ousiness has recounded well frore the :
lockdowns reguireg by the Covid-19 pandam.c
nse, selling 41 units in the year (an incregss of
52%) ard ar increasing N revenue of £75m to

£20.4m 12021 £12.7m]

lcan book cver the year as cash was made avalable

to graw other pa(ts of the busness
Cperatrg expenses for the year were in Lre with

e
our expeciations, with the rmorease pramarity driver

L P TN

By roreased Loarating Costs in owr Sbre dnesion as

i has exp arwded

Refirancing axlernal deot

secure improvec terms over the past twao years ha

ontributed (0 a decrease ir interesL cosis o7 £2 5
to £336m (2021 £36 1m).

Incluzed nthe resuits thig year is g proat of £28m

recogrised o the sa.e of twe wird farmrs .n Finland
and a rea.sation of E”:,Gm of deferred cons deratic

or: solar sites sod in previcus years

Financial position
Cortineed shareholzer n rnvestmer? has
cen not atsels grow to £2 219m (2021 £1 888m

restated). In the vear ended 30 June 2022, we
issard “20m shares |

~ RO
<o
M
—
[
8]
3
3
—

corsideration of £20
COMparative year nurmosrs inc

C‘
Q
)
m
A
L
0
Iy
3
9]
)

consicerat on relating Lo Qroup resruciurng

Net current aszes of ERO8 (26 . E663m restated)
hiave increased by £14500 reflect ng the reducuon in

external wnambm g7 37 increase N work in 1 arogress

o D
A
3
A
'
L
=
o]
et
]

witin the abre ardg Pouse builoing

Goo< roroperty lending ~as decreasen by 6% to i

£26Im (2027 £285m). arg at 30 June 2022
enned (6% of net assets (2321 21%)
Cash and cash eguivaients as a7 30 June 2022 w

£2567 (2021 £2721) Cash genera

cerating activities decroasec o £42m (2021
342mi which has

42
ng-termm financing and capital raised oy new shae

P\O

neen Ullized alongside externa:

i)

5ues 10 grow the ousiness, We have invested
substantiaty into the 9bre oroadband sector over

tre past four years which w i requice further captal
exp citure over the next 3-5 years, inCreasirg our

diversification across sectors

Cf the cash hew at year end, £211m was held in
our energy, home tuild ng ang ficre subs.dianes,
where there are a number of constructon ard
infrastructare pro ects under way, equinrg cash o

be readily avaitable for stage payments due in the

rronths after y

o
Il
=
]
3
-

A7 restated),
a sigrificant numner on the

rses ontre aeausition of sarme
GLerec businesses, for exampie
renewable eneqgy sites, often rave a marker vawe
in excess of the company’s net assels, «eflectirg
tnelr reljat.e fui.re imcome sreams. Accounting
corvention reguires that only idertfable assets are
namad on the balarce sheet so the accounts

_1

vaiu.e wh ch COormprIses the fumm joi(e] trat 1es

are expected (o deliver Tre additional value in
of rre vawue of fixed assets thamrseives (such

as solar panels] is recognsed as gooawill

FPut simply, the market vatue of the energy
gereraion busressos (o indeed any operations
pus nestes; rehiecs the valae of future expected
profis, not the cost of emply buying tangible assets
sich s solar oanel

s o wind turines We Day

rmarkar value f

m
>
8]
yu
D
jo)
—_
>
v
2
@,
[
(D
@]
by
Ly
L
8]
3
W
«
-
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Ssctor performans

Energy
As econom ¢ activity and

gobal demand rcreased
througﬂow tne year, 50 too did whoizsale energy

oricas, driven by movermnents in commodity ornces,

woich resulted @0 the overall irciease in revenue

Sarmed across our energy sites. These mar«e:

factors nave resulted 122 an ncrease in revence of :
RAW 10y E5GAm (2027 E322m.

or-espondingly. SBITDA also ircreased by 11£% 10 3

(2021 £196m restated), partialy dnven by increased

site costs where £120m was mcurred at aur
clomass sites ard £93r at our reserve power sites,
the prices for raw materials have increased, on
average, by 6§9% que to an increase in the supocly
costs Tre combined co for the reserve
powver and biomass sites ncreased by F110m to
E,:l/m (2021 i It shcula be noleg that the
generated by the biomass and reserve

st of sales

revenid

topower sites eased by £1( 2 duning the year to
266m 2021 £126m resiated) reflecting tne ¢ opowe n‘”C“ ased by £192m dunng the y
- . | ¢ OE355m (2021 £181lm).

sigrificant ircrease in enerdy revenue. Overall total
operating costs neressed by E130m to £227m :

Fyz2o22 FY2021 FY2022 FY2021

Production Production External External

(MWh) {MWh) Availability Avallaballty

Ziomass 1 050 038 BEG,553 84.6% 87 a/

andftl Gas 240,226 256,076 97.9% S7E%

Reserve Power 403,355 141474 94.2% 92.0%

Solar 554,858 517112 97.7% 96.0%

wind 851,214 881,241 90. 5% 0% 1%

Totat 3 099 690 2 682 019

wzg*zwg o
S
3‘”’ £
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Healthcare

Healihcare cperations contributec £46m

(2021 £42m) 10 Group revenues for the year
eflecting the impact of inCreased revenue @
Rangeford. Sales of anarirents at the retirerrent
villages have reocunded wel from the lockdowns
required by tne Covid-19 pandemlc response,

2 of 52% from

1o E2G.2m

selling 41 units In tne year {an norea
2021} and increas'ng revenue by Ef/g
(2021 £12.7m)

Lending
Revenue from lending decreased by £14m to 42
(2025 £57rmy pn-’r-am;f due W a smatler average

loan book for 222, which resulted in a decreased
revenue stream for the yvesr. The total loan book
reducec by 6% to £261r 8
F336m)
cash to be avalabic for cpportunities across other
sectors with.n the Group

at tne year end (2021
This redsctor in the loan bocx enable

ncuding acaoisiions and
construction, The make-uo G° the lean back nas
hifted sligntly where we rave ssued a nigher
numiter Gf smaliar [oang within tre residenual
sector, as we. as more larger loans 1 the
develcprient secior and the commergal sector.

EBITDA for the lending civision decreased to 2 toss
of L8 7m frort a profit of nearly £1mn 'n trie pror
vear, This movermen: reflects a provisicn of £25r in
the loan book against loans to reserve power sies
and a provision againit a ~ealthcare loan o £14m.

Iy the year to June 2022, E3%m was provided

versus E2imr the prior year

Fibre
As a reatively mew dvision, all the fibre Dus resses
are in tne build prase 3ng ete siart ﬂb: o aad
cusioTers to ther networss By 30 June 2022, the

pas;ed cver 150, O ;O rorres We

as we expana the ﬁcre rrﬂwo'ks

cings 01 250 INCUrs large coerating expenses as the

buaresies scale ner operations end develop
market presence. Overall the d vision reported an
EBITOA ‘mes of E55.4m (2021, £23 5 loss), which

is i lime with expectations and reflects the

ce the diwsion.

gomenial siage of

As we builg trnese networks out, the assets will oe
cogriseo on the balance sneet ar co
carnor incude future value whech s expect:d o be
generated as e assefs have baen :ntermalty
generated. This s different to the share grice whers
tra future vaile expected to be generates from tne

assels is ncluden

nl

Home building
Ewva Hormes was acquired n May 2022 and has
nerefore had umited impact on the inanc al
performance during the yesr. The blsiress
forecast to deliver £78m revenue and £6 5m
EE:TDA for the year ended 3@ Jung 2023 Hesuns
f 2023 :nd:cate the bhusines:
i broadly performing in

frormn the first quarter ©
ine witn expectations

Funding and liguidity
Our strategy is ta secure long term firancirg at
consarvative levels from mansirear banks to
e~hance relurrs fFom our rerewaiie energy

d £1.044m of

Dusincsses. At year end wa i3

external project hnarcng with £441m of

neadroorm availab'c.

Tris enables us
mar<et c;or.aders Io have 512

o acguire Dus resses 1at the

€ charactensucs slch
as predictable cost base, revenue streams,
government ircentives or proven technology and as
suen have iower returns that without leverage would

be insuffcient for our sharerolders 1 250 alows us
flexsbility in fnancirg owr businesses ard rmanaging
cash fiow We beleve that faltng 1o adapt this
ategy would Fave a negalive Mmpac On DusSness
relurn ard sharebclder vaoe over the .ong term.
Aoproxi-nately 80% of our int

and trherefore we are not san. ‘Cmtly exposed to
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the currert interest rate volatility. We conunuaty
review financing arrangemen:s o ersure that tney
are compeltitive and optimised for the needs of the
business To ensure cash is managed in ar: agile
rranner, we maintain a fiexdble finance facility
wilch can be drawn down or repaid o meo:
mmediate business needs

Looking ahead

The Croup has rebounded well fromn the effects of
tne Covid-13 panderric and nas outperformed
exgectations. Whiist the current economic outlook
s one of cnatenge and uncertanty, we anticinate

minimal impact N cur resuils due to the
predictable revenue streams and cost base, ana
Jpied with the
the ausiness,

essenrtial rature of our acivities, Co
diversification we have bult up across
we are posivoned strongly for thesze turbulent
times anead

We conlinue to pay partcuiar
challenges of rising interast rates and surging
inflation -~ botn in terms of lending and portfolic
managemert Tnese trands mpact all areas of the
Group's buziness and are Lkaly (o remain for the
we future, so we remain disciclined noour

pproach. contiruing © monior the

foreseeal
nvestment
cituaticr carefuily and taking a prudent approach to

any current and emerging ricks

We are positive agout the continuad opporfunity
for growth and conuriue (o believe that the
ousiness s positoned vell to take advantage of
future growtn apportunities across its core business
arzas trergy, lending and house buiding
operatiors are well established in the market and
continue to make excellent progress with robust
perforrnances in the new financial year In line with
our planned strategy, since the year end we scld a
large solar farm in Aucstralia for a smail profit, with

proceeds being redeployed irtc new opportunities.

Deployment into fire cont.nues 1o roll out in ine
oup has now passed
our fibre

WIZION rernams

wilh expeciations and the Gro
rrore than 150,000 homes by
Sales sctmty N our healthcare o
nearly 40% cf anrual sale

networkes,

5 bLJCJGC—"t

ewed or reserved a sites as at

Cross a

wilhin the autumn statement as part of

Arnounce
the 2023 F-nance Bil,
enact a 45% winafail tevy (E

"BEGL on whalesate en
revenues in excass of £75/MwWhn Ths

the uV Gover~menrt will
ctriciry Generator
Levy” or eray market
appiy 1 the Groue from 1 Janua
March 2028 The exacs legislation wil og publshec
ar 20272, but based on the irmual
release an impact analys.s has been oerformed

as at 30 Septernper 2022 We estimate the impact

n mid-Cecemb

to be a crop nvaluat:cn of approxmately £45rm
for tne ates affecied, which contrioued (o 2

Op decrease in the share price 1o 177 5p in
Dacerper 2022

We expect to generate sirorg cperaing returns
from our established dovsions for the coming years,
n addit.on to the anticipated cutflows for cur
construcuon ghase assets The neaslthcare and
figre divisians are well into their buile ohase in ine
wth our tong-ferm strategy and we anticipa
strong returns over the next fve (o seven yaar

upan maturnty

PS Latham
Dhrector
16 December 2022
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present their report and the audited consclidated financial
staterments of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022

for a surmnmary of the Group's results, refer ¢ the

Group fnance review on page 23,

Tra directors have nol recomnended payment of

& dividend (PCZ1. £NL

Tne drectors of tine Company who were
auring the year ans up 1o tre date of signing the
fnancal statemaorts were,

i office

PS5 Latnarn
K Witley
PG Bar

T Artnur <3

opoinied 1 July 202

O

Refer o note 25 in the Nofes 10 the fnanciat

slalements

Refer t¢ the Strategic Report on page 8

Refer to the Slrategiz Regart on

Refer tC the sector 172 statement on page 21

25 and polcics on fnanaiai risk
gement incly d\mg nforrnaton on the

exposure of Thcufoup to credit riss, vquidity
rcks are set ourin rofe 21 to the
erts The Group s prncipal rizks zre
ot out 11 the strateGic report on page b

n 414c (11) of the Corrpanies

b dw“’ro'c have eecctad o discloss

As permilied oy sechio
Act 20086, 1
information requ red 1o be in tne drectors report
by Schedule 7 of the "Large and Meaium-sized

Companies and Croup (Accounts and Rep
Regulations 20C

YOris)
. In the strateq'c report

The Boara reccgnises that a corporate culiure
ba'ﬂd or souna ethical values and behaviours s an
aaset The Group erdesvodrs to cordact its
busicess with ntegrity, in an efnicat, professiona

and responsihe manaer, treating oJr employees,
customers, supplers and parners with courte
and respect

D I Sl e e ena

Apn by disan.ed persors
are given ful' ard falr corsderatior 7o al.

cations for employment

vasancies, hav ng regard W their partica.ar aottudes

and abilihies Saculd a nerson become aisasled
while in the Group's empcyme.ﬂ:, every effort g

rNace o retar IR i emLioy et gving

alter—ative Traming &s Necestary.
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We fully realise that cur ermnployees wis~ o be
infermed ana consulted or matters affecung ther

n
wor< and 1o be invoiveg in problem-solving affecting

therr own areasz of interest and responsid ity

a cimrate wneh consiantly encourages
Present

c the onern
j this
‘oCa eve, and

flow of informat on and ideas,
includes monthly tearn brefngs at a
the putlication of monthly key oerformance

indicators covenrg cutput, operating costs and

reaith ard sa'ety

The Groun has in place an agreement with Octopus
investments Limited (o grovide services Ic the
Croup coverng operational oversight,
adrinistration, company secretarial and company
atcountrg

PR

PRSP L L N AN

The Board adopted a formal envirorrmentai, social
and corsorate governance ("ESGT polcy on

30 Secember 2020 The Group recognises the
need 1o conduct its business, It a manner that 1s
responsibie to the envirormient, whearaver possible.

As alow energy user, the Comodhy has elected not
to discloze cata on its e-ergy and carbon usage.
Fern Trading Limited is the only Compahy inthe
Group that meets the reportng criteria and
therefore no information is provided for the Groun

as a whaoe,

The Group's has an Ani-Bribery Po
ntroduced robust pracedures 1o ensure full
compiiance with the Bribary Act 2010 an
that the highest standards of professional ethical

Goy which

U o enslre

conduct are mainta:ned.

In accordance with the recommenrdatons of Tne UK
Corporate Covernance Code, the Soard nas
cons.dered the arrangerments in place o encaurage
sta’f cf the
concerns, in conadence, withr ther organisat on
s5'ble irrproprietes in matters of Anancial

Group or manager of the Group to raise

aboul po

reporting o other matters, Itis satishied tnat adequate

arrangamcnis are in place © alow an independent
investigaton, and fodow-or action where necessary,
10 taxe puace within the arganisahor

We are commuitted to acting eth caly and with
integrity i7 al. our busicess deal ng: and
re:anensnips and © imglementing and enforcing
effactive systerns ard contrels o ensure moaern:
slavery 15 Nnot akng place anywnera 1 our own
business or in any of our supply chans, cansistéant
with cur ablganons under the Modern Slavery Act
2015, We expect the same high standards fror all
of our contractors, suppliers ard other
pariners As pari of our contracting processes, wea
expact our suppliers to comply with the Maodern
Slavery Act 2015,

DusINess

The directors are responsible for preparing the
Anrual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with apglicable law and regulation.

Corrpany law requires the directors to prepare
financiat staterrents for each financal year, Urder
that law the directors have prepared e Groug ana
Corrpany financial statements in accordance with
Urited Kingdom Generally Accepied Accourting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Starndards,
camprizing -RH5 102 "Tne Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland”, and applicable law) Urder company taw
the drectors must not approve the fimancial

staternents ur-less they are satisfied that they give a
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true and fair view of the state of affars of the Groue PR T O
ana Company and of the profit or loss of the Group

and Comoany for that penod I prepanng the
friarcat statements, the directors are regures to!

t1ng polices and then appiy

+ stale whetner cppl icasle Unitcd Kingaormn

Accounting Standards, cemprising FRS 102, have
beer foilaowead, subjcc,,f to any material cepartures
disclosed ard explameu N the financiat
statements

o make judgements and accounhng estirmaes that
e

are reascnable a~d prodent ang

« prepare the financial statements o the going
CoNcern pasis unless it © inappropniate 1o
presume that the Groue and Cormpary witl
CONTNUE 1IN DUSINESS

The director: are a.so ressorsinle for safeguardirg

tre assets of the Groun and Com Gzny and Fence

for taking reasonaile steps for the preavent.cr and
lari

detecron of fraud and oter irregu

Tre dire
acoountng records that are sufficient 1o show and

ors are rasponsible for keeping aoeauate

explain the Groug and Cormnany's transactiors and
diszicse ve th reascnabie accuracy al any ure tne
and Compary and
2nable them to ensure that th@ Snanca: staterrents

> Cormparucs Act 2006,

Fnancial position of the Grou

comply witk 3

Tre drectors are responsibie for the manterance
and integrity of the Compary's weosite Legislation
in the United Kingdom governing the presarat on

t
and disseminayor of Frandia. siatements may differ

from legislalion m other junscicty

As permitted by the Articles of Association, the
directors have the benefit of an ingemnity wnich is
a qualfying thurd-carty incemnity provision as
defined by section 234 of the Comparies Act 200¢
The ndemnity was 1o force throughout the last
financiat year and is cdrrently in force,

tthe daw the

of each director in office

epori s approved:

« 50 ar as the director is aware, there s no relevat
at.d tinformanon of wh cn the Group and
Compary's auditars are unaware, and

« they have taren all the cteps that they ought
1o have taken as a cirecor in order to make
trhomseives aware of any relevant audit
information and 'o establish that the Groun and
Comrpany's auditors are aware of that informaton

Trus confirmatior s given and should be nterprated

inaccordance win the prowsions of section 418 ©
the Comipanies Act 2006

Errst & Young LLP naving nesr appointed in 2022
have indicated their wilingness to be reappsi~ted

for another term anrd will e progosed for re-
appointment in sccordarce with section 485 of the
Cormpanres Act 2006

Tne Directors report was aporoved by the Board of

Direcrors on 16 Decemper 2022 ara s.gned o <

Lenalf by

PS Latham
Crecior

16 Decerther 2022
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Oninion

We nave audited the financial statements of Ferrm
Tradirg Limed (the Parent Company’) aﬂd s
subsidianes (the Group') for the vear ended 30
June 2022 which compr e e Group Staterment of

Comprehensive Income, tne Group and Harent
Cormpany Balance Sheel, the Group Stalerment o
Casn Flows, the Groug and Parent

Charges in Equity and the related notes 110 25

Statement of

ncludirg a surmmary <f significant accountng
oolicies The finanica Lerort ng framewaork that has
neern anplied in their oreparation is apgiicable law
and Un ted Kingdom Accounting Standards
ncluding FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting
Standard anprcabie n tne UL and Republc ¢f
Ireland” (United <Xingdom G
Accounting Practucel

senerally Accegted

I our opinor, the financizl staterments

« Glve 3 ttue and farr view of the Group’s ard of the
Parent Comoany’s affairs a< a1 20 June 2022 anda
Y

of the Group's proft for tne year then ended;

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with
United Kingdor Generally Accepted Accounting
Fractice: and

« nave been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2008,

Basis for opinion

We conductad cur audit :n accordance with
International Standards on Aud-tng (U] (ISAs (UKD
and applicable law. Our responsibilittes under trose
standards ars furtner descriped 0 the Auditor's
resgonsibiitias for the aud.t of the financial
statements section of our report. We are
ndeperdent of the Group N accordance with the
ethical requiremnerts that are re.evant to our sudit of
the finarcial statements in the UK, mcluding the
FRC's trhical Standard, and we have fulhlled our
other etniral responsibilities In accordance with

these reguirements

RS}

We believe that the audt evidence we have
obramned < sufficiert and approprate o provide a

Das s tor our opinion,

Conclusions relating to golng concern

In audtirg the inancial stalernents, we have

concluded tat the directors’ uzse of the gaing
concere baws of accounting in the preparation of

tre fAnancial statements iz aporoprizie

n the work we have performed, we rave

riot entifed any matenat uncertantes relating ©o

events or condinens that, inds
sigrifcant doubt on the Group and Parent
2 going concerr

dually or cotlsctively,

ca
Cofnpaﬂys anily 10 continue as 2
far a period of twelve maortks from when the
financial statements are auth orized Tor issue

Our responsibintes and the responsit:lities of
tre dreclors with respect o going concern

are described in the relevant sectiors of ths
report. However, because not ak future events or
conditions can be ¢

crecicted, this statement s not a

guarariee as o the Group's abi.ty to continue 35 a

gowg Concerr,

Cther information

The other informauon comprises the information
ncluded r the annual report, ¢ther than the
financ:al staterrents and our auditor's report
treraon. The directors are responsinle for the other

informatior contained within the annuat report

Cur opinion on the financal statements does rot
cover the cther informat on and, except to the

extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we
aG not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

Cur responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other
nforrmation 1s matesally inconsistent with the

financial stazerrents or our knowledge ottained n
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

the course of the audit Oor ctherwise appears to be « certan discosares of Direciors’ remuneration

matenally russtated 17 we identify such material specifhied by law are not rrade; or
incorsistercies or apparent mater.al misstatements,
we are required 1o determne wretner this gves rise

to a material msstaterment in thig financal

s e have not receves gl tne irformation and
exparators we require for our audit.

statermnerts themaeives. IT, basad on tne worl we ﬁg‘gw:}{}g‘sgﬁ}ﬂ%%é@g of directors

have performed, we conclude that thers s & ) ) )
. . : . . As explaired more fully in the Direciors
matenal misstaternent of the other informaton, we -

Jes staiement set cul on Dageas 29 anc

respons
30 she Drectors ae responsitie (o the preparation
of the financial staterrents and for being satisfied

are reguired to report traf fact

We have nothing to repot in this regard.

trattiney gve a true and fair view, and for such

Cpindons on othey matiers preseribed
by the Companies Aot 2006

N our opinion, based on fhe work urdeaksrin
the courze of the audit.

mternat control as tre DireCtors determime s
necessary Ic enape the precarauon of francia:
statemerts that are fr e from mratenal

m.sstatenent, whether due to fracd or ols

» the informaticrs given in the Stratagic repart and In preparng the financial staterments, tre Dycciors

tre Directors’ report for the financial year for are responsible for assessing the Grous's and the
which the financial staternents are preparad s

conssient win the finarcial staterments; ard

Parert Company’s sk lily 1o contirue as a gong
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relatea

to going concer and using the g2 Corcera
« the Swrategic report and Direciors report nave = ‘
basis of accountng urless the D crors either
beer prepared ir accardance wlh agoucasie
legal rec srernents Irtend o vquicate the Gfo o or the Parent
e Jat aurrernerts, N .
i Company or W cease operations, or Fave no
» 8 ‘ == ee alterratye todo s
fatters on which we are required to i realsuc alerratve DULLS A3

report by exceplion s s reas .
# Y = Auditor’s responsibilities for the mudin

~ frre Iy ine 2 clare 1 [ale r 4
N the hght of tre knowledge and understand ng of af the financial statements

tre Group ard toe Parent Compamy and its
ervironment chta ned in the course of tre audit, i T

we hiave rotidgentfed wras ’Hal rassstatemerts in
. ¢ ogre free from matenas msstaterr

it whether due

e Sirategic report or Directars’ report :

P frauc o errorn and (o 1ssug an audiier's repo
We have noth: ng to report in respect of the frat inciudes our opirion. ReE0rah.e asiurance 15
folls & hi-ghn level of azsurance, buts not @ guarantee tha

o E

L1 anauait corducted in accordance witn 15As (LK)

Ccmmam 5

N our coiron

Wil anways cetect a mareral misstatemert wner £

ents car arse from fraco or error

P
>
in
i
s
Qs
b=
(F
-
iy

arent Company financial 3

in agreerent with tne gccouct ng record: and
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Explanation zs to what extent the
audit wes considared capable of
detecting rregularities, including
fraud

Irregulanties. Including fraua, are instarces of non-
complance witn laws and regulations. We design
Nsisivties, ouwtbred
Luging fraJd, The

rt duae o

orocedures 1N lne wth our resoc
anove, o desst ey ul.ar;tfes, ircl
rick of not deteciing a ratenal missiaterne
fraud is hegher than the f\sk of not deteciing one
resutting from error as fraud may involve deliberate
concealment by for example, forgery or intentional
on The
exter\t o Wf’-|ch our procedures are capable of

c.czectlrg irreguitarites, including fraud is deta:le

TisrEores ations, or througn collus

o

oelow However, the
prevention and dete
those ¢
manajer

prirrary responsicilty for the
fion of fraud rests with botn

cnarged with governance of the entity and

et
Cur aoproach was as “cllows:

« We obiained ar understand.ng of the legal anc
raqulatory framewaorks that are applicable o the

Group ang determined that the most sigrificant

are those that relate to reporting framewaork (FRS

102 and the Comparies Act 2006)

« We understood now Fern Trading Lirmited 15
camplyng with those framewo ks by making
engdiries of management, these charged with

governance ara those responsible for lega

ard compl ance procedures as ta any fraud risk

frarnework within the entity, including whether

essmentis comoleted. We

of the

a formal fraud risk ass
corroborated our enguines through review ¢
foliowing docurnentation or perfermance of the

foliowing oroceduras

« obtain'ng an understa~dirng of eniity-level
cortrols and cons dening the mfluence of the

cortrol ervironment;

3
'ﬂdwwtquem;uw

iy
3t

4

-

S ks

uE a.ﬂ um.\wz
sriteas ity
s

« chtainng an understandng of policies and
procedures in place regardirg compharce
with laws and regulatioris, including how
compliance witn such policies s monitorec

and enforced: obtairﬁng an

ss foraenufying and
including prograrms

unaderstanchng of
rMEnageErt
responding to
and controls established 1o adaress
identifed, or othenwiso prevent, deter and
detect fraud, and h
rogrars and controls;

cnt's proce
fraud risks,

rs<s

oW 3ENIor rmanagement
maon tors those

= review of poard meelng mindtes i1 the penod
and uo o date of ziging.

bility < the Group's

< to material misstatement,

dnarcial statemernts

incCluding now fraud might acour by holding 2

discussion withir the auadit team which ncluded
e identncation of related parties,

» understandirg the Group's business, the

coniro. ervironment and assessing the inheren
risk for reievant assertions at the sigrnficant

account evel including discussions with
ranagement 1o gain an undersanding of
of the Nirancal statements wiicn

identified by

thiose areas
were sus:eptébte to fraud, a3

management; and

ontrots that the Group has
establishied o address risks idertified by
ertty o that otherwise seek to pravent
raud inciuding gaining an
urderstanrding o3 and
polces that the Group applies

of tne entity leve. conrtr

we deagrzed our
cANCE

Based on this understand rng
aud 1 procedures 10 gentify non-comp
with sacn aws and regulatons. Ou procedares

involved testing of journal entries througn

iournal analytics tonls, with focus 01 marnJat

Fhis TR
Sxpncd thaiir

i 5y i
Poee) awmm?,ma“wi 2
4

roieiiiaity
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

journals, large or unusual transactions, or journals

meeting our defined risk criteria bascd on our
understanding of the business,; tested accounting
estimates for evidence of management bias,
enquiring of members of senior management
and those charged with governance regarding
their knowledge of any non-compliance

or potential non-compliance with laws and
regulations that could affect the financial
statements; and Inspecting correspondence,
if any, with the relevant licensing or regulatory
guthorities.

A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial staterments 1s located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at

www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our audior’s report.
T O AR LT AT R

i S

This report is made solely to the Company’s
members. as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state

to the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and
for no other purpose. To the fuliest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company’s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

ﬁv’w@:&% ]\ L

Michael Kidd (Senfor statutory auditor]

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory
Auditor

Belfast

20 December 2022
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Group vrofit and loss sccount for the vear ended 30 June 2022

{restated)
2022 2021
- B Y P O — . N L. P\JQ“—‘ Coal e E’noo E DOO -
i s e 3 L e i e T
Cest ol sass {410,883) (221.277)
Gross proﬁt h Tttt o e ww366;4::7 . o 204 025 a
Admiristrative exnenses (258 251) {231 844‘
Operating profit/tless) > a2696  (27819)

Otherincome 1 ' 3,550 G454

‘ncome from otrner ixed asset nvesiments 5,249 449
Share of operatmg profitin: jomt veriture - 1755

Frofit on disposal of subsiciares and jornt venture & 29,533 28,568

Cther interest receivabie and sirmilar income o 130 Qg7
intersst paysole and senilar charges & 33, 554) - (36.067)

Proﬁtl(loss) before taxatlon e 47,604 ) (22 663)
Tax on yoru O‘\: 7 {:6 294) (8 349)

Proﬂtl(loss) for the fmanc:al year 31,310 tjl 012)

Attributable to Fern 37,932 (27,005}
Minority interest (6,622) (4 OO?; )

L3510 e 31 mz)

All results relate to continuing activities Note 26 details t1e prior penad agjusirments,
Group statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2022

(restated)
2022 2021
‘ o £’000 E'Q00
Profit/(loss) for the hnanc1alyear T ) 31.310 B {31.012)
&c—t;;;comprehenswe income T .
Movermeants in cash flow hedges 77,985 44983
r ‘

0 er comprehensive income for the year 96 546 44 650

SS) on re'ranslatmn "Jf fuhs "‘!drl(’; 13 561 (333)

Total comprehensive income for the year :.27 856 13 638

Attributable to
» Owners of the parent 134,478 17645
+ Non-controlling interests {e,822) 14007
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Group kalance sheet as at 30 June 2022
(restated)
2022 2021
, ... Eo00 000 |
Fmedassets N R v e ORI e . £ e 50 b s s S s b e
Irtangible assets ] 557,708 576,739
Tangile as E 1,893,430 1,581,682 |
levestnronts 10 35,452 11,000
e e e e e e e e e e e z ,486,596 .......... 2 15911’3;“ |
Currenrt;ssets - 7 o S / z
Stocks 12 184,479 54711
Deptors (ncluding £158m (2021 F16 1m; 13 623,161 598,607
due after more than one year :
Cash at bank ard in hand 1" 256,415 172478 ;
S S I o ‘M“i,064055 o é65 91”
Credltors amounts fal{mg due \mthn;\"-one year o M o (256,152) o (202 “Mj} 7
Net current assets S o 663-155- i
Total assets less cua;rent iuabnlmes ? 832,553 i‘
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 1% S »(9»92’4{5{ o (903 739)7 A ‘
PI‘O\HSIO"S fOI‘ ilabllltles T o _7 o (82 620’ - (41 372 1
Net assets ' - . 2219448 1887842
Capital and reserves o
Cailed up shsre capital 18 161,662 149576 :
SNES LIermILrT account 164,882 173118
Merger -csenvc 1,635,569 1440257 ?
Cash flow hedge roserve 63,006 114,979)
?roﬂ and loss account (2 770) 126,049
Total shareholders funds T - 2, 222 349 4 71,884‘121
Non-carniroll ng nterests ) o T (2 901} 3791
Capltal employed . 2219 448 7 188784.:
Note 26 detalls (ne pror pencd adjusimenrts
Trese consoudated dnarcia. statements or pages 25 o 32 were anproved by the Board of directors on f
16 Decerrier 2022 ard are signed or tnerr b2haif by

PS Latham
Director

Regisierad ~urmcer 12601635
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Company balance sheet as at 30 June 2022

2021
£000

D B X R AR S RS D

MNote

ERUENE G TR R YRR O LR BT AT A EARE b THR A 5B b e e a0 8 €7 P LR xR U, RIS T B EE RS LRE R RIRARY AP E kT kbt F i KRt

Fixed assets
Investments 103 2, 539 973 2 116 366

2539978 2116366

Current assets

Debtars 13 39,888 50,383
Cashy a7 bark and 1 nand 11 6,422 1.573
o | S  ae3e 51906
C;'ed;térs amounts falllng due wuthm one year 14 o (449) R (?2954) -
Net Cuﬂ'ei‘lt assets S S Mﬂwwwwwwuw”;; 851 T 289 Mj‘égm“
Totalassets less current liabilities 2585839 2145348
Net assets o 2585839 2145348
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 15 161,662 149676
Share pramiurn account 364,882 173,118
Merger reserve 1,986,457 1791145
Aroft and loss accourt 72 838 3L 409
Totalrsh'arer:;lwd‘;rs ;I;;:is— e 2 585 839”%” 2 ’45 348 )

The Cormpany nas elected to tave the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to
nresent the Company profnt ana loss account. The profit for the financial period dealt with ir the financial
statements of the Company was £236,742,000 (2021 loss of £157,504,000;

These financial statements on pages 35 10 §2 were aporoved oy the Board of cirectars on 16 December 2022
and are sigred on their behalf by.

PS Latham
Directer
Reagistered nurnber 12601636
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Group statement of changes in eguily for the year ended 30 June 20942
Called up Share Merger  Cash fiow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest {restated)
(restated}  {restated) funds
{restated)
) _Eo00 £000 £'000 £000 - £000 . E.'OOQM E'DPO _E'po
138,435 - 1635569 62837 £41,185) 1.668,982 9570 1678 552
Pacrperon - - - 3875 13,828 17703 - 17,703
agpustments Incte 261
Jiarce as a1l July - - .
S;WT; A 138435 - 1635569 53562} 27356) 1686685 9570 1696255
- - - - {27008 (27005 (4,007 {31.012}
- - - 44983 ~ 44,983 - 44,983
- (323 1333 (333)
- - - 44983 {533 44 650 - 44,650
- - 44983 (27.338) 17645 14,007) 13.6%8
- - - - 1831 1832 (1842} 112
s T - - n9s312) - 195,31 - - -
15ILr ] Sur g ”,: . 7 - 7
e s 11685 173,118 - - - 184,803 - 134,803
e yea
- - - - (6.8£3)
203] irestarod 143676 173138 1440257 (14,979) 5720 LB87842
Balanceasat
1 July 2024 (restatad) 149,676 173,118 1,440,257 (14,979) 136,049 1884,121 3721 1,887,842
Profit for the
financial year - - - - 37,932 37,932 {6,622) 31,310
Changes in market
value of cash flow - - - 77,985 - 77,985 - 77,985
hedges
Foreign exchange
loss on retranstation - - - - 18,561 18,561 - 18,561

of subsidiaries
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Called up Share Merger Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling empleyed
apital account reserve account holdars’ interest

funds

E'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 E'000 £000 £°000
Other
comprehensive - - - 77,985 18,561 96,546 - 96,546
income/{expense) for
the year
Total comprehensive
income/{expense) for - - 77,985 56,493 134,478 {6,622) 127,856
the year
Utilisation of merger _ 195,312 - (195,312) _ _ _
reserve
Shares issucd during 191,764 - - - 203,750 - 203750
the year

" Balance as at

30 June 2022 364,882 1,635,569 63,006 {2,770) 2,222,349 (2,901) 2,219,448

Note 26 details the prior pericd adjustmeants

Company statement of changes In equity Tor the vesr ended 30 June 2022

Calted Share Merger Profit Total

up share premium reserves and loss shareholders’

capitat account account funds

£000  E000 _ E'000 £000 £000

:3:;;:;6 S —— o~ R R S e . -
Loss for the finaricial year ) ) - - S i (157504) (1537504)

Utilisation of merger reserve - - 1195312} 195,312 -
Total comprehensive income - ~ - [{95&2) 37898 157504 )

Shares issued durnng the year 150,120 173118 1,986,457 - 2,309,695

Shares cancelled during the year [444) - - [6,339) {6.843)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 " 149676 17348 1791145 31,409 2145348

Profit for the financial year - - - 236,741 236,741

Utilisation of merger reserve - - 195,312 {195,312) -

Total comprehensive income - B - 185,312 41';{9wmwww V 235741

Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 - - 203,750

Shares cancelled during the year - - - - -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 " ie1e62 364882 1986457 72,838 2,585,839
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Group statement of cash flows for the yvear ended 38 June 022

{restated)
MNote 2022 2021
- i} . R £’000 N {.(JOO
Cashhﬂows from opekrat:n‘g ah::;vmés* vt PR o PO e £ TR 5 SRS PSR < S © ogge. 1R - RS SO © A5 TFeE
Proftflosst for the Ninanoal year attributatble iothe owners ©F the parent 37,932 (27.005)
Adjustments for:
Tax on proftloss) 7 16,294 8,345
Interect recarable and sircdar income & (130) 99/
leierest payvabie and other srnilar charges <] 33,554 36,068
Profit on disposal of subsidiares and oir venture 8 (29,532) (28,568
Income from jont venture - (1755}
Irzoree freme fixed asselnvesiments (5,249) (445}
Armoriization and impairment of intanole Gxeed assets 8 45,762 37704
Degrecaron of andgble fxed a550te 2 101,802 534,697
MNon-cash staff costs 3,040 8,875
toyvernenss or deqdvatives and fore gn exchangs {18,044) {19,788}
lrereass i slock {19,829} (5,701}
{Increase)/decrease in debiors 31,022 249,374
Ircrease/ducragsel v cradinges {173,956) 6,871
Non-caontrofing interasts 19 (6.622) {4,007}
Tax received/ pad) 25,853 {1 7‘:1)
Net cash gevl;érated from operatmg actwmes e 41897 T 341 917 B
Cash fiows from investing ‘activities e T
Purchase of subsidary undertziergs (ner of cash acguared) 52,327 (221,987}
Sale of sunsdiary urdertadings and Cint verniLre 101,778 34503
Purchnaze of targible assets (322,446} (110.457)
Purchase of mtanginie asiels {7,222} (875]
FLronsse af urhsted imvestrients {124,203) (29,617
Sale of unested nvesiments 10 105,000 20133
Irteras: recened 6 130 997
Ire ome | um Jont venture - 1077
Net cash used II;“I‘HVE;;!I"IQ‘ actwmes - ) . M(ZBVQ,Z’;;O) o (306 2261W
Cash flows from financing act|v|t|es . : B N o I
Proceeds from firancing 201,719 -
Interes: pag (32.319) (35,552
Repayrents of inancing {32,013} {212.676)
Frocaeds fror share 15,8 ) 203,750 184 359
\,d cetahion of 5 : L8 - 0, 399)
Net cash generated from fmancmg actlvutues o o S S 341, 137 N (70 46P/
Net (decrease)lmcreas;n cash and cash equlvalents 7 B I 83,694“ o 134.577)
Casn and cash eguivaienis a- the ueg ning of tne year il 172,478 206,688
éji’rij;— % on cash ard cash eguvalgnts - 243 o 7 367 i
Cas;;r;i cash:zaﬁuwalentms“aft‘the en&—oﬁl;e year o N o 256 415 - 1;2478 w

lote 268 detals the pror pencd adjusimerts
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[

Statement of accounting policies

Company information

Fern Trading Lirrited (tne Company’) is g private cormpany lirmted by snares and Incorporated on 14 May
202G Tne cormpany is comiciled in England, the Uniteg Kingdorn and registered under company nurmber
12601636, “he aadress of the registered office is at 6th Flocr, 33 Holborn, Longon, England, ECLN 2HT

Statement of compiiance

The Groug and individazal firancia. statements of Fern Trading Limited have been prepared in complarnce
witn United Kingdor Accountng Standerds, incluqu Financial Reporting Standard 107, The Finanaal
Reporung Standard apphcable in the lnited Kingdom and the Republic of irclznd (RS 1027 and the

Cornpanias Act 2006,

[l

Basis of preparation of Hnanclal siatements

The financal statements nave been prepared on a going concern basis, under the hustoncal cost convenhon
e modified by the recogmiuon of certain financial assets ard liab'lties measured at fair value, and N
accordance with tre Companies Act 2006 ard apphcable accounting stancaras in the United Kingdom. The
principal accountng poicies, wh.cn have heen applied consisiently throughour the year, are set out below

The conzolidaed firancial staternents include the resuits of aif subsdiznes owned by rern Trading Lirnitea
sted ir noxe 29 of the anrual inancia: statements. Certain companies of these subsidiaries, which are

as
hsted in note 29, have taken the exemption from an audit for the year ended 30 June 2022 perm:ited oy
section 4794 of Co,nr'pames Act 2006 In order ic alow these subsigianes o ake the aucit exempuon, the
parent compary has giver a statutory guarantee. in tre with section 479C of Corrpanies Acm 2008, of alt
the outstanding net iabihities as at 30 June 2022,

Going concern

The Group's and tne Company's bus ness activities, together vath the factors Likely to affect its future
developmert performance and positior are set our te Strategic Report on pages 4 1o 14 Tne financial
position of toe Group, its cash flows, I!Ou\dwty po—siuon ard borrowng faclities are describea in tre nanciat
review on pages 23 1o 27 The principal s ftne Group are set out ori pages 16 to 19

The Directors perfcrm an annuat going concern review that considers the Groug's ability to mest its
dnanc:al obligatiors as they fall due, for 3 penod of at least twawe monins after the date that the financial
statements have been signed,

Due to the chalienging rarket conditions rmaragement have performed an assessTent to deermine
whether there are any material uncerzainties ar sing that could cast sigrificant coubt on the ability of the
Group tc confinue as a going corcern. No significant issues have been noted and as a consaquence, trea
directors believe thaf the Groun is well placed (& manaaqe its business risks successfully desgite the current
uncertarn econcmic cutleok

C oo

uswim el
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Statement of accounting policies

in reaching this conclusion tne Directors have reviswed the g ot of the urgertairiy on the

Groun's baance sneet, profit and wcss ard cash flows with specific rat-on given to the followirg

A reverse stress test was perforﬂ”eo 3N the hase case foracast 1o ascertain what scenanos would resuit in

s
risks to the Groups hguidity pos fion The tast showes ever i an unikey scenario ¢f 3 signficant reducucn
C

of revenue of 46%. tre GroLp s abe o ain its current operat onal Cosis and reeet atl labilites as they fall

due for at least a year from the cate of signing nese fnancal statements wnaen utlisng the avalanle
faciliies within tnhe Group

Tne Group nas a number of finanoing factizes that cortain covenarts requnng the Group o raintar
pcrmpo financia: rat.es and comply with certain otrer financial covenants. These firancial covenants are
sted at least gquarterly, ard, at the date of this regort. the Group 1€ in comslia~ce wiibk all its inancial
covenants Stress tests on reasonably plausible scenarios such as a s‘ghiﬁcaﬂt reduction :n ERITOA of 84%
over tme have neen ased to assess the covenant requirerrents for the at least the next twelve monins ard

all covenarits have been forecast to ne Met even under the stress lest scenario, n the going concern perod
AL 30 June 2022, the Group had avatao'e cast of £256m ana headroerr available of £44%Lm including a

reviolyng credi faci \t/ of £210m Debt of £85m s die to mature I [ess man one year, with the rerrainder
of £958m payakble i more than are year The Graups facdites repayment aates and undrawn amounis arg
set out in Note 16 Loans and Borrowings

Key accounting suggemient and esimates have been made with consideranon givern (¢ the current

El Y
eCoCNoMIC Gul t.ook Key estimaes nciudes loan recoverasility, valustion of work 'n :3roqress.
Aecomrrissioning orovis ong impairment of goodwill and irvestments, business cormoinaicns ard hadye

accounting. Detalls are set out on pages 50 to 51

=

Based on the above assessment of current economic conditions anc the mpact on tie Group's financial
pf ton, iquidity ard finarcal coverants, the directors nave ccnc‘uded gt the Grouo arnd Company has

E\J

eguate resources to continue ir operat.onal ex stence for the next 12 menths. Trus, they cortnue to

adopt the gomng concern basis of accounung in preparng the annual irancial statements

Exemptions for gualifying entities under FES 102

FRS 102 allows a gualifying entty certain discloswra exemprians, subject 1o certan corgtions, which bave
beer: compiied wih, nciuding nctification of, and no chyection to, the use of exemptions oy the Compary's
sharehalders,

The Carmpany 1as taxen acvantage of the “ollowing exempiions

o from preparing a statement ©f cast flows, o tne tags that it s a qualiyng entity and tre consot dated
stateent of cash flows, included 'n these Ainarcal starements, incudsd tre Cormpeny's cash flows,

1 from tre financial nstrum ent disclosures, requ red under FRS 132 paragracs 11.38 1o 11.48A ard

il from ascosng the Comeany key management persorrel compensat.on, as required ny FRZ 102
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Statement of accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consoudated hnancial statements neiude the results of Fern Trading Limted and all itz subs-diary
undertakings made up to the same accounting date Al intra-group walances, transactions, Imcome ard
expenses are eliminated in full or conscldation. The resuits of subsicdiary undertakings acguied or disposad
of during the peroc are included or excluded frorm the ncome staterrent from the effective date of
acguisition or dizposal.

All underiakings over which the Group sxercises control, be.ng the ocower w govern tne financiat and
operating polices so as ko obtain benefis from thar activites, are concclidated as subsidiary undertakngs
Where a stbs:idizry has different accountng poiic es o the Croup, adjusimernts are made to those

¥ ‘ J
subsidiary finarcial statements to apply the Group's accounting oolicies when preparing the conschidated

finarcial starements.

Ary subsidiary undertakirgs or associates soid or acguired dunng tre year are included up o, or from, the
dates of change of contral or change of signficant inf.uence respectively

Where the Grouo has written a put ootion over shares heid by a non-cortralling interest, the Group
derecogrises the non-controlling interest and irstead recocnised contingent deferred corsideration hability
witnin ather payables for t1e estimated amount ikely 1o be pa'd 10 the non-controling ~terest on exercise
of those opticns Thne residuai amount, represenung the difference between any conuderaton paid/oayable
and the non-ceniroling mterest's snare ©° riel assats, 1s recognised as goodwill Movemernts in the
estimated lizbuty after initial recognition are recognised as goodwili

Foreign currency

i. Functional and presentation currency
The Grouo financial statements are presented i1 pound ster.ing and rounded to thousands.

The Company’s functional and presentauon currency is pound sterling and rounded to thousands

ii. Transactions and balances
Foreign currercy transactions are trarslated nio the functional currency using the spot exchangs rates af
the dates of *he transactions. At each period end foreign currency monetary items are transiated using th

th

e
at the
date of the transactich and non-maonetary iterns measzared at far vaue are measured using tne sxchange

closing rate. Nor-monetary iterms measured at histoncal cost are translated using the exchange rate
rate when fair value was determined. Foreigr: exchange gans and lozses resulting from tne settlement of
trarsacticns and from the transtation at period-end exchange rates ©f monetary assets and aabilities
dencminated in foreign currencies are recognised 10 the profit ana loss account.

Al foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the profic and loss account within ‘adminisratve
EXDErNSes’

iii. Translation

The tracding results o Group undertakings are Fansiated into pounas sterling at the average excharge rates
for the year The assets and liabilities of overseas unaertakings, ncluding goodwill and fair value adjusiments
ar.sing on acqaisition, are transiated at the exchange rates ruling af the year-end. Exchange adjustments
arsing from the retranstation of opening net investments ard from the ranslation of the profts or losses

at average rates are recognsed in 'Cther comprebhensive incorne’ and allocated to non-contreling interest

as appropr.ate.
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Statement of accounting policies

Turnowver
The Group operates a number of classes of business. Revenue is cerived by the {ollowing:

- Energy
Turnover from the cale of eecticty generated by solar farms, wind gererating assats, resaerve power
plants ard iomass and @andhil sites s recogrized on an accruals banisin tre perod in winich 10is
genaeraten Revenue from lorg-term government backed offtake agresments, such as the Rencwanie
Cpligaton Certification {'RQOCT) scheme are accrued in the period .n wheeh i retates to Turnaver from the

sawe of fertil.ser by biornass ard landhll businesses is recogrised on physical dispatch

« Healthcare

Turmover g recogrised when the significant nsks and rewaras 0F Swnars
DA
probable that the econormic penshts associated with the tramsaction will fow 1o the entity Turrover

o of retirement properties have
1o the buyer (on lega. comp.euony the arnount of revenus car be recogrised relably, and 1tis

s recognized at the farr value of the consideranon received for healthicars services providec n the normal
~Carse of Bosiness, and is shown <2t o urrover s recognised based on the date the sevice is
course of bus s, andis eh tof VAT T nised based on the date the se

provided.

e Lemding
Turnover represents arrangement fees and interest or loars provided to customers, ret of any vaiue
added tax. _oan 'nwerest s recogn sed on an accrual basis ‘n ane with contraciual terms of the loan

agreemeant Arrangement fees are sprean over the iife ¢f the 1oan to which they relate

{
w

« Flore

Turnover is recognises at the fair vaiue of the consideration recaved for internet connectivity and ralated

IT

services provided inthe normal course of business, ard s shown ret of VAT Turrover s recognised

baced on the data the serace s provided

* House buiding
Turncver is recogrised on legal completon of the sale of property, land ard comrmerCia. spaces Turnover
from nousimg associauon cortracls is recagnised by réference o trs value of wors completed as a

proocrtion of the total contract value.

Emplovee benefits

The Grodp provides a range of peneis 'o emp.oye
arrangements and defred contrbution pension plans

5. rCUCiNg anrudl norus arrargemants, pa-d Foliday

Short-term benefits

i

Short- ferrm benelis nelud ng notiday pay and other simlar nen-monetary bernefts, are recoun seq as ar
expanse in tne period 1IN wh o~ the service s rece vad.

ii. Defined contribution pension plan

lefned contnbut-c~ plan s a pensigr piar under wn'ch the Group pays fFred contnbutors |

e
@

n
separate ertity. Grice the contributons have been gald e Group fas ne further payment oblgatiors

Tr

i

&

are showr n,

]

“perse when trey are cue Arrourts

net pal
fih from the G

(4
QU

roare ned Iepara rouo in ncesandenily

~
ial

admiristereqg ‘unds.




Statement of accounting policies

iii. Share-based payments

Casn-settled share-hased payments are measured st far value at tne balarce sneet date. The Group
recc gmsm @ lizbiity at the balarce shee: date based on these far \mu 5, taking Into account the esumared
rumper Sf urits that will actualy vest and the current p(o::-ortrofw of the vesting penod

Crianges in trie value of thus liabiity are recogrised in the income statemanrt
The Group has no eguity-settled arrangarmerts
Finance cosis

Finance costs are cnargec to the profit ard iess accourt aver the werm of tre debt using the effectve
mnterest rmethod so that the amount charged s at & constant rate on the carrying amount Iszue cosis are
t

nwzily recogrised as a reducton in the proceeds of the asscciates captal instrument and regased to the
orofit and Ioss account over the term of the debt
Current argd deforred tay
Tax is recogn:sed in the statemen: of ncorme and retained earnings, excep:t that 2 change attr butable to an

e of ncorme ana experse recegnised as otner comorehersive income or ko an e racognised directly

.‘)

neguity s alse r@.cogn-sed ir gther comprehens ve INcorme or directly in equ ty respectively

The current ncome tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates a~d laws that heve peer enacted o
substantively enacted by the baance sheet date ir the courtres where tne Caompany operass and
generztes ncome

Deferred balances are recogrised .n rescect of all iming differences that have origirated but not reversed

by (he Balance shicel date, except th

« Trherecogrition of deferred tax assete is Umited to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered

aqainst tne reversal of deferred tax Labilities or other future taxaile profits; and

« Any deferrac tax batances are reversed if and whean al conaitions for retaining gssaciated tax atiowance
have been Tel

De‘erred tax balances are not recognised i respect of perrmarent differences excent in respect of business
b

of
combinations, when defered tax s recaognsed on the differences between the fair va-ues of assets acquired
ardl the future tax deductions availlable for them and t~e differences betwee” the fair values of dabiities
acquired and the amourt that will be assessed for tax Deferred tax s deterrined using tax rafes and laws

that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance Jh eerdale.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combimatiors are accounted for by applying tne purcnase method

The cost of 3 business combination 1s the far value of the consideration given, liasciities ncurred or
assLmed and the equity instrumerts issued plus the costs directly atinbutable to the business combination
Where contrel is achieved in stages the cost ‘¢ the consideration at the date of each transacucn,

On acouisition of a busiress, farr values are attributed to the igentifiable assets, Labrtes ard cortingent
liabilties unless the fair value cannot be measured rel ably, in which case the value is incorporated as
gocdwill Where the fair value of contingent lab ites cannot be reliably rmeasurad they are disclosed

on the same basis as other cortingent liabilities.

“iqgmm
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Goodw I recogized regreserts the excess of tre far vawe and directly atiributagie costs of the purchase
consigeration over the fair values to the Grouo's interest 1n the identiable net assets, labiliies and
contingent labilites acqured.

On acquiztion, acodwii s allocated 1o cashi-generating units {CGU's) that are expected (o benefit from
e cominration

Soadwill is amortsed aver 113 exgected useful e which is determ ned bases on the estimated lifespan of
re assets acquired, Where trnie Group s unable to make a retable estimate of useful life, goodwill s
mortised over a period not exceeding ten yaars. Goodwill is rev ewed and assessad for imparment

QJ

rdicators or an anndal basis and any impairment is cnarged o the proft anc loss

Tangible fived assets

Targible fiked assats are stated at cost ess desreciaghion. Depreciation s provided at rates calcuiated o write
et

Ciat

G the cost of ixed assets, less tnar estreted residual vaiue, cver thelr expected useful lves. Depreciat:on

commences from the date an asset is brought into service. Land and assets in the course of constructon
ui L

are not depreciatea. The ast

4
o
o
T
G
[
7

o
Hﬁ

ves are as foliow

=

L tam mac W\ery

P\:etwo'k ass sets 4% w‘o / stra 0?” Tal=}

N

Assets in the course of Construchon are stated at cost, ~“hese assets are ~ot depreciaied until they are
e

avalane for use

(

Wrere factors, such as technolegical advancement or changes i markat prce, incicate that residual valus

or useful life have changed, the resioua: value, useful life or depreciatior rate are amended proscectively to
reflact the new circumstances The assets are reviewea for imparment f the aoove faciors naicate that the
carryng amourt may be impaired

Cains and 1osses on disposals are determinea by comparing the procesds with the carrying amoun: ang are
recogsed within prefit or loss
frntangible assels

intangible zssets are stated at cost less accomuiaren amartizaton and accumuiated mparmert .osses.
Amortisatior s calculated, Liing the strai ght lne metncd. to allocate the gepreciacie amount of the assets

to et residual values aver ther asuimated usefu. lives, as folows:

Amortisator expenses gre INciudea in adrinisirahive expenses

Development rights relate to plann rg consent to ould 2 solar fanm ana g wird “a"m acquired on acguIsion.
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Where factors, such as changes in market price, i~dicate that residual value or useful iife have changed, the
residual value, useful bie or amortisation rate are amendea prospeciively 1o reflect the new circumstances

The assets are reviewed for impairment if the atove factore rdicate that the carrying amount may
beirrpared

Lesses

Auinception the Group assesses agreements that ransfer the right 1o Jse aszets Tra assessmont considers
wiether the ar-arigerment s, or contans, a .ease based on the substance of tne arrangement and whether

the iease should be classified az either a finance lease or ar operaling lease

Leases of assets that trarsfer substantally all the r sks anc rewards incicental to Ovm@“ﬁhp classified as
hrance leases. finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the iezse at tne far value of the
lezsed asset and depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful i fe of the asset
Assets are assessed for impairment at eacn reporting date,

isks and rewards of cwnership are classified as operaung leasas

(V]
4
o
—
_
il
=

Leases tha:

d
Paymants under operaing lesseas are charged t¢ the proit and l0ss sccourt on a straight-ine Basis over e
period of the |

investmenis

The Comcany nolds investments it a subsidiary at cost less accurmulated impairment losses If ar

raparment loss s suoseguently reversed, the carrying amount of the investrnent 1s increased o the revised

estimate of its recoveraktie amount, but only G The exient that the revised carry.ng amrount does not exceed

the carrying armnount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recogn.sed in prior
erinds A reversal of an impairmenrt [0ss s recogmsed in the profit a~d loss account.

Cash

Cash includes cash in hand and depasits repayab-e on demand Restricted cash represents cash for which
the Group does not have immediate and direct access or for which regualatory or legai requirerments restrict
the use of the cash

Stocks

Raw rateria s, spare parts and consumables are va ued at the lower o cost and riet realisable value. Where
necessary, a provision »s made for obsolete, siow-maoving and defective stock. Costis determrined on try
first-n, first-out (FIFO) method.

Fuel stocks (MBM and litter] are valued on an average cost basis over one 1o two months and provisior for

unuszbie litter 1s reviewed montnly ard apphed to off-site stock

FLel stock of straw has been valued at the historical cost per tonine of straw. A provision for unusab.e straw
s «dentifed on an indivdual stack basis and 1s reviewes monthly, Stocks are useg o0 a first in, first out
("FIFO") bass by age of straw

Stocks of azh at Florophos are valued at the lower of cost ard net reausable value to the Croup,

Stocks of property development work in progress {"WIF') are stated at the lower of cost and net realisatle
vaiue Cost comprises direct matenals and, where applicable, girect labour costs and those overneads that
Agve been incurred in bringing the stocks to ther present locatiors and condition.
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At each reporting date, an assessrment is riade for rngairment Any excess of the Carrying amount of
stocks ovar its estimated seling price less costs to comolete and sell s recognised as an irparment [oss
through the profit and oss accourt Reversals of imparmert osses are also recognsed in the orofit and
loss account

Accryed income

Accrued income on loans § calcuiated at tre raie of Mterest set out i the Can conracts, fnergy INCome 1s
accrued over the period in whizr « has been generated.

Defarved income

Sefered incorme is recognised 1n accordance with the terms set out in the contact, Deferred incornra is
released (o the profit and loss accourtin the pericd (o whchi it relates

Financial insiruwments
Tre Group has chosen to adopt Sectons 11 and 12 of FRS 102 n respect ¢ inancial st umients.
Financial assets

Basic financial assets, iInclud ng frade and owner receivab.es and cash and pank balances are imnlially
recognised al transaciion price. uniess the arrangernren: cenistiutes a hnancing transachon, where the

ot

ransacuon s measured at the present value of the futLre rece'pts discounted at a market rate of interest

~

such assers are subsequently carned at arrortisec co

LLsing Ine effective irverest method

At the erd of eacn reporting pencd financia. assets measured at armartised cost are assessad for chec

rrent o5 1§ the differe~ce oetween the carrying
arount ard the presert value of the estirmated cash flows discounted at the asset’s onginal effective mteres

evidence of impa ment. It an asset ' mpared the rrpa

ate. Tne irrcairment 0ss S rﬂc:\,qn.std in orofit or ioss

Other fnancia, assets, including .nvestrnants ir eauily nstruments wirich are ~or sussioiaries, 25:00.8les or
jont ventures, are inaly rmeasured at fair valle, which is normally tre ransaction pr <8 Such assets are

Lsequently carred atl far value and the charges in far value are recagnised in profit or loss, excep that
IMVESTTHNLS In eguity Instrumen's that are not pubocly rraded and whaose fair values carnot ce meas._red
reliabily are Teasured at cast less smipairment

Financal assets are gerecogr.sad when (a] the contraciual nghts o the cash flows from the asset expre or
are settled, or (5] subst
another party or (¢}

ritially all the nsks ana rewards o tre ownership of the astel ae trarsferred to
a5 pean trarsterred LG anormer party who has the practica: abilty
2 thin riy without Impesig additiena. restactions

A
to dnilateraily s2il the
Financial Uabilities

Basic firancial uasities, imch ; trade and otner cayaales. bank loars, loars fro felow Grous comzaries
and prefarerce s

y recogrised at fransachion pnce, Uriess tne arrangaraert constututes a
on. where “he deot rstrument s measured at the grese~t valua of tne ‘uture rece’pts

distounted at g mar<e: rate of interest




m
i3

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMEN

-
[
A
o
o
-
i
i
™o

Statement of accounting policies

Debt instrarnents are subsequently carried at amortised cosl, usirg the effecuve nterest rate methad. Fees
naid on the estakblishmer: of loan facilities arer ecoamsed as transaction costs of the lgan Lo the extent that
it s probable that sorme or al. of the facility will be drawn downr, In thiz case, the fee < cefefred until the

draw-down occurs To the extent there is no evidence trnat 't s probable that some or ali of the facility will
pe drawr down, the fee is capitalced as a ore-payrment for iiguidity serv ces ana amortised over the penod
of the fac Uty to which it relates.

Trade payables are obligations tc pay for goads ervices that have Deen acquired in the ordirary course
of business from supphers. Accounts oayable are classified as current lab lties if paymert is due within one
yosr or less If nat, they are presenled as none curren: labrities Trade payatles are recognisea indially at

trarzaction once 2rd subsaguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest metnhod

Financial habidties are derecognised wner the Labiliy is extinguished, thst is wren the contractua: oblgation

rs are Made where an event has taken glace tnat gives the Group a L,gal or constructve oblgation
that prooably regures seterrent by a transfer of economic benefit, and & reliab.e estimate can be made of

the arrcunt of tre nbligation

Provisiors are charged as ar expense to the profit and loss accourt in the year that the Grouo becomes
aware of the obligator, and are measuqed af the best estmate at the patance sheet date of the expenditure
required to settle the obl gaticn, taxing Inte account reevant risks and uncertainties.

Hedging

The Group aoplies nedge accounting for tranzactions entered iIrto to manage the cash flow exposares of
borrowings. Irterest raie swaps are held to manage the interest rate exposures and are designated as cash
flow nedges of floating rate borrewings Changes in the fair values of der valives designated as cash flow
hedges, ard wnick are effective, are recognised directly in equity Any ineéfectiveness in the nedging
relationsh'p (being the excess of the cumuiative change in faif value of the hedg:ng instrument since
inception of the Pedge over the cumulative chiange In the farr value of the hedged 1em since meeption of
the nedgel s recognised in the grefit and lo

The gain cr loss recogrised in other comprehensive income 15 reclassiied to the orofit ard loss m
accordance with the cash fiows of the hedged item. Hedge accounting s d-scontnued wren the nedging
instrument expires, ro longer meets the nedging crteria, the forecast transaction s no longer highty
crotable, the hedged debt instrument is cerecognised or the nedqing instrument is terminated.

Share capital

Crdinary shares issued by tne Groug are recegn sed in equity at the value of tne proceeds receved, with the
excess over nomiral value being credited tc snare premuum.

Mon-controlling interesis

Non-controling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable n

M
1]
[%]
A
1]
—
ol

at the date o scquisition.

L
Eipaten
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Hey sccounting judgemaents and estimates
e pregarzion of financial statements in cornpliance witr FRS 102 requires the use of certan criical

accounting esurnates | also requires management 1o exercise judgement in applying the Company's
accourting potoies, Estimates and judgemens are conunually evaluated and are pased on hiziorcal
experence and Olher factors, rcuding exgectations of future events that ae helleved to be reasonable

Lnder the arcumstances. The key estimales and Jusgemerts in orepanng these Gnancia siater-ents gare
i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers {estimate)
Loans and advances to custorners, mcluding associated accrued income tatances, are reviewed for
Imparrment on a quarierly basis. In cons.dering the need for 3 provisien, wm'g%mer‘:t determire their best

m
)
o
3

timate of the expected future cash flows on a case by case Dasis. As this eztimate relies or a certair

number cf assumptions about futura events which rnay aiffer from actual cutcomes, Irciuding the

borrower's ability 1o repay interest ana capitat due in fuigre ceriods, this gves rise © Judgement &s o
¥ pay P g o Ju

whether there s a shortfall between the carrying value and the far va ue of the debtor Ealance.

Managemert note tha: provisions aganst loans ad adva-ces is a cntcal cstimate and nave trerefore
perfermed sensitivity anawysis on the provisan, Tre rasuts of the sensitiary analyss conclude that a changs
cf 4/ one per cont in tne ameunt proviced against the estimated balance at risk wewa bave rezulied r

23 6m less/more expenditure being crarged o the income siatement dunng the penod See note 13 for the
carrying amount of the debtors and provis ons at 30 June 2022

ii. Value of property development work in progress ('WIP’} (estimate}

Property development WP s reviewed for impairment on a perodic bass In cons dering the need for a
provision, maragerment determine ther best estimate of the recoverabre vaile Management engage an

ag
expert externa: valuer to orovice key assurmptions abour future evenis which rmay d Fer ‘rom actuat

outcomes, nc.uding property valuations, rate of saes ard development costs.

These estimates give nse to judgement as 1o whetner thee 1s g srcrtfal pelween the carry nig value and the
far value of the nalance as at the 30 June 2022, Post year end, maragement have reviewed :he
assumphions used 1o Setermine the value of property develcoment WIP and have chierved no chargesin
perfecrmance that would impact the valuation as a7 the 30 Jurne 2022 See note 12 for the carrying amount
of the property devetopment WiF

iii. Purchase price agreement (Australian entities} (judgement)

The Group owns two erergy generating subuid aries i Ausraliz which: have entered Irto purchase price
agrezamerts (PPA’s) n 2019 and 2021, Tne PRAs inciude a contract for differences "CfD 7 whereby the
subsiciaries payfrece ve arounts from the customer based on tne difererces cetween a fixed seilirg crice

and e aciual price for elecincity so.c o the Al liar eniergy market Tre cirectors 2elieve the contract s

ira
cutside tre szope of RS 102 sectionr 12 as .5 for the saie of a non-fina~cial tem ara the CfD < tyoica. for
such arrargements Tnerefore it s baing a¢ ntec for under FRS 102 section 22 a5 2 revenue contract wen
varat:e corsigeranan, rather thar revall ng f.l e ertre conracl c far vae

iv. Business combinations {estimate)
Trie cost of a business combinaucn is the far value of the consderat o~ gven, nasilines incured slus the
= e

costs directly attebutaole to the business comb naton, Far value of these combinaliors s a key estirmae
n

d more detais are provided on pages 45 ¢ 46

1
i
i
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v. Decommissioning provision (estimate)

Tre provision for decommssioning cosls is measured at managemeant s best estimare of the presert vaile
of the expenditure required 1o zettie the future obligation 1o return land on whicn there are overatieral wird
and solar farms. to its origina! condit.en The levei of the provisions is deterruned 1O a sign'ficant degree by
the estrnatior of future disrmantling and restoration costs, as well as the 1 ming of d smantlement.

Wind Farms {estimate):

ManageTent note that gecomimussioning orovis 2 3 criical estmate and have therefore performed

sensitivity analysis, The results of ne sensitivity & conclude that a change of +/- one per certin the
disronnt rate wouid have resulted n £2 1m increase/dew zase i Lhe provisior See note 1/ for the provision
ecogrised at 30 Jure 2022 Managemeft Jtilise external expertse to provide an estirnated cost to
disrrantle and have usea a discount rate of 2% (o reflect the me in value of money and the risxs speafic

to the ooligation

Australian solar farms (judgement):

The Groun is required to restare the leased prermises of the solar farm © their ongira: conaiton at tne end
of the lease tarm A provizion was previously recognrised, hiowever in the currert year this judgement nas
been reassessad ard managemen: belisve the iessor may with to ether take utle of the assets for ether
continued use or o reaise value thraugh selling the assets and as sucn da not believe that an outflow 15
orchabie to sette this resworat.on obugation,

UK Solar {estimate):

During the year, a thirs party performed an assessment of the base cost of the decomm.ssioning of the
Croups UK solar farms The indings bave resuit bd in matenai change in tre cost estimate and mersfore a
arovision has been recegrised for the first ime on some stes. The impact has resulted in a provision being
raised for £18m o the balance shest decorrmissicning labiuty and fixed assets. As at 30 Jure 2022 there s
no imepact o the proft and loss Sites rot affected are addressed be!

UK and French Solar {judgment):

Managerment beliave that given the nature of these parucdlar assets, the lessor may wish to either take title
of the assets for either conlinued use or to realise value through seling the assets and as such do not
believe that ar cutflow 15 prenatla 1o sertle this restoration oblgaton Management will contiriue to monitor

the situat’'on at each palance sheet date.

vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments (estimate)
The value of goodwill held by the Group and investmerts in subsdary undertakings held by tne Corrpany

s reviewed annualy for imparment. The recoveratility of these baiances is considered with reference o the
present vaiue of the estmated future cash fiows These calculat ons use cash fiow projectons which exend
forward forecast businass perforrnance together with assumptions surrounding e expecied life of the
uations, ard ary adjdstments reguired o the discount rate 1o take

azset, externaly prepared forecasts and val
account of business risk. The estirnated present value of these future casn flows is sensitive 1o tne discourt
rate ard growth rate used Ir the calculation, ali of which require management's judgement Testng of the
carryirg vaue has been performed dunng the year, wnich Fas involvad several scenarics being modelled
Baser on this wesnng and the resdlting :mpairment recognised on nvestments, management believes there
15 suffcient headroom 1o support the value of gooowill and investments in suosidiary entitias

Maragement note tat impairment of goodw || and invesimerts is a critical estimate and have therefore
nerformed sensitwity aralysis on the grovision. The resuits of the sensitivity analysis corciude that a change
of +/- one per centin the armount provided aganst the estimated balarce at risk would have resulted n
£5.4%m less/more expenditure beirg charged o the income staternent durnng the period. See note 8 for
the carrying amournt of the goodwil. and invesiments at 30 June 2022.
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Analysis of turnover by category

Erergy onerations — solar, reserve power and wing

Energy operations

Heaitncare operations’

Haome bulding

picmass and lardfil

2022

o £'000
e 42,404
365,958

223,526

45,978

25,034

8,930

711830

B s TR T

2021
..E000
56,552
179,820
141826
42,266
4828
425302

out

nciuded in incorne fom Healthicare operations s [174m 2021 €11 2in) reating to e sale of retiremnenrt village units,

-

and £28 67 (202]

E21 1y in relat.on 0 services renderec

Analysis of turnover by geography

P P P S R

2022

United Kingder V " eoseil 384790
84,433 31,893
23,486 8,610
711,830 425,302

Other income
2022 2021
A ) . B M £000 £000

d damages and ingurance proceeds

3,550

5,454




o e

o
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This s stated after charging/crediting):

{restatod)
2022 2021
£'000 £'GO0

QImte assels ncie A 37,849 37,704

Amoriisanon of riianr

Irparment of infangiole assats (note 8 7.913 -
Cepreciation of tangible aseers (note §) 101,802 84657

Audirors’ remuncration - Compary and the Group's corsohdated

Anaroizl statermenis

45 146

Auditors rermuneration — audit of Comoany's sabs dianes 819 1134
Audiiors remuneraticn Not andib services 246 513
Auditors’ remunarahion - @ax CoOmphancea semnvines 482 672
Drference on foreign exchance 7.772 4402

Coerating leace rentals 13,783 7502

Note 26 detais the prior penod agjustments.

2022 2021

o £000 E'GO0

Wares and sala 85,432 41,383
Socil secunty costs 7,041 3,809
3,233 1676
95,706 46,868

Otner persion costs

Thne Group provides a defired contrbutor schemes for its employees n the UK The amount recogrused as
an expense for the defined contriouticr scheme is shown in the talkle above

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:
2022 2021
o Number Rumber

Sroauction ‘ 1,032 699
348

Adrmnistration

hrectors

1666 1050

!

The Company had ore empioyee other than Directors during the perice ended 30 June 2022 (2021 none)
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Gl E e T LTy

2022 2021
£000 £:000

R SR S 095,07 S R, e T T T 06 R0 0 SRR e S B0 b s 0 T TR DT TTFRI b BB TS g T H e PR TR T (Y 6 DER R, STl TR

Emoluments 176 163

Durng the vear ne pension contribulions were madge 1 raspect of the directors (2021 none

.

The Group has no other key managernent (2021, norel

A numpoer of suosidiaries of tie Group operate 3 caso -etten LTIP fo auslfying employees, whereby
C a et srer

3
ermpioyess render services sn exchange for cash, tne amount of whuern is determinad oy refe

vatsanon of the underlying subsidiary The fair value of the laolity for the awards made is measured at each
reporting date and at the settlement aate. The falr valle s recognised Cver the vasting parad The amount
of expence recogrised [akes iINio accouns ing test ava labie estirmate of the number of Lnits expected 1O

vest under the service and perfonmance condions urderlying each award granted

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees

2022 2021

Number of MNumber of
awards awards

Orn-* r‘g out ,t—mdwng balance 1,914,751 1.640,000
uf’mfed darng the DE]I'V_J(_x 1.763 563 2743 751

Closing outstanding batance - 3678314 1914751

Tre tatal charge for the year was £3,133,C00 (2021 El,334,”JG'O) and at “he 20 June 2022 tnere was a
Lakiity of £2.407 000 inciuded within credicre g e £ &

6 i

Interest receivable and similar income 2021

B L L g, P T

Irterest on I’JSI"\I’ ng’lf eg

T RS Papec STURALT TR AR st SO TSy T A pa T L PRy TTEMAL LA s SREMAL YRR ma

99?

E OOO

Interest payable and similar expenses 2022 2021
E'ODD £ Ou()

‘r teres f on bg‘ ‘k t:o rn vinge 7 C - T 32,192 B 34 ?79
2,597 1103
(Profi/loss on dervatve francia. instrure s {1,235) 587

7 S T T 33,554 7 35,068

Armorticator O issue CO5Es On 2ark DoTrow




’?‘\A,,

a) Analysis of charge in year
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(restated)
2022 2021

_E'000

P R R S e 3% T A 2 TG 2 P PR PP IR, smawen

Current tax:

UK corporation tax charge on profit/iioss! for tne year (297)
Adhusiments in respect of prios penods 3,196
Foregr tax suffered 5,641
Total cutens ax chargeficreds ' 8,540

v e T S vt

oo

1648
(2.866)

12181

Deferred tax:

Ongination and reversal of timing dfferences 6,227

Adjustments in respect of prior pencds (3.741)
fax rates 5,268

Effect of chan
7,754

rotat deferre

fa:k charge'bn'pl;dﬁfl(lb'ss') on érd'inéry activities ' 16,294

2.074
{5,998}

11491

9567
 8.349

b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tax assessec for tne year is higher (2021 higher) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the LK of

19% (2021, 1S%). The differences are explained Lelow.

frestated)

2022 2021

£000 £'000

Profit/({loss) before tax 47,604 (21,170}

Profit/foss) before tax muitiplied by staridard rate of

‘ e \ 9,045
corporatentax ir the U of 19% (2020 19%)

rftects of.

Lxpernsos not deauctible for tax purposes 11,723
Otrer effects {868)
incorme not taxakie for tas purposes {8,102)
Adjustments in respect of pno- penods {545}
Effects of change intax rates 5,041
Totaltax charge for theyear 16,294

(4022

16,076
1022
(©.351)
(6.565)
11,489
8349

c) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The Finarce Act 2021 eracted on 10 June 2021 increased the main rate of Ul corooration ta« frorm 18% to
25%, effectve 1 April 2023, Deferred taxes on the talance sheet have been measured at 25% (2021, 25%)

wiich represents the future corporation tax rate that was enacted at the balance sheet date.

MNote 26 detaiis ine prior penod adjustments.
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& oot

Software Goodwill Development Total
{restated) rights

Group o B o £000 i E’OOO o £'000 ) £'000
Cost L s e 5 R e T
Ar 2 Juty 2021 {restated) 954 726,602 10,236 737,782 !
Acauired throuagh business - 30,042 4,058 34,100 i
CoMDINations ncte 27) 1
Adaitons 2125 - 1040 3165 :
Dizpasais - {21,118} - (21,118 ;
Gain on transiaucn - 7.930 - 7830 %
At ."-0 June 2022 . 3089 743 456 }}}} ,‘ 15 314 o 761.859 “I :
Accumulated amortlsatmn o . - R ‘ . o
At 1 24y 2071 (restatedi 107 159,902 1,034 161,043 *
Disposals - 2,462) - (2.462) :
Loss o translation - (192} - (192)
Iteparrrrent - 7913 - 7,913
Cnarge “or tre year 12 3/314 523 37849 :
At 30 June 2022 e 2024 475 O ass7 "204,151 i
Net book vatue S S S
At 30 June 2022 2,970 540 981 13,757 557,708

A0 June 207 fesiated) g5y 566700 9182 576739
The gain on translatcen cf foreign currency acencrinated goodwilis recognised in other comprehensive !

ncome Amortisation of goodwil s charged o admimistrat or Costs.

)

Uetals of the subsidiaries acquired during the year erdeg 30 June 2022 can oe found in note 27 i

Durng the year the group disposed of 2 wina farms in Bintand, as a result £2.5m of accumulaied goodwil
amortisation was recogrised in the current year and £19 3m of gocdwii was realised on the sale Gainc
salg recogrused ' the profit ad foss in retaticn oo this fransaction was £28m

Impairrment of £7%m has b

nreccgnised on goodwill (2021 ~onel,
N 2s5efs have been pledged as secunty for labittes at vear end (2022 nonel

Tre Cerrpary hiad no imitang tle aszets at 30 June 2022 (2027 none!

Notwe 26 aatals the pr or ganod ad ustments
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2 ,,‘.,.‘1:: B S S

Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under Total
buildings stations machinery assets construction (restated)
{restated)

Group o £000 £000 £'000 ~ £'000 £000
Z:;tm, R i g RS bt b e 85505 5 SR - [P ot e
At 1 July 2021 {restated) 8,531 217467 1635437 27288 43277 2092,000
Addnon: 829 1536 73647 00462 238006 374480
g é;‘”: ‘i:ifn‘iuﬁm“ 1308 - 51,344 - 57,663 110,315
FRJREIr valle mcverr ent - - 368 - 3.294 2,662
Transfers - 68 1,066 30,236 {32.070) -
Drepesag 135) - (75,851) - - {76,086}

At Sb J-u;ne 2022

Accumulated depreciation

AT Juy 20-1 4410 o0.05% 414,559 1.290 -
Crarge for the yoar 187 17130 81,141 3245 -
Dispasals - - (1B2} 221 -

TA micvernent - - (776} - -
At30 June 2022 4593 107,189 494732 4,417 -
e . AT LT e

At 30 June 2022 . 5,940 211,882 1,251,169 114,269 310,170

/3- 3'3 ]_me ?CZl (réstarte‘:h‘ 4121 227408 1,280,878 25,998 45,277

10533 319,071 1745511 118686 310170 2,504,371

510,318

101,802
{403)
(776)

610,941

1,893,430

1,581,682

Included within tangibie assets are capital sed firance costs directly atirbutabie to bringing the asset (nto
use. Tne net carrying amount of assets neld under finance i2azes Inciuded in plart, machinery, 9xiures and
fittings is £51,785,000 (2021: £51,534.000 ). Included in network assets 15 a provision of £1,023,000 for

oosclete equinrrient and developmens
The Cormpary nad no tangible assers at 30 June 2022 (2021 nene)

Note 26 details the pricr penod adjusiments.

i
|
!
|
i
;
|
|
!
|
\
|
!
|
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
10 oo s

Unlisted
investments Total
E'OQO £000

e YT S et YRR T o S B T e B B Y R 0 £ SR ET K e T ARy o O PRERA TGy ¢ T ST IR oeY

Cost and net book value

A1 Juy 2021

Adoitons

Dispo

30 Juneggzz et o e e e oo s et i eee oo < ee e s

AL 30 Jure 2021

11,000
125452
(105,000}

11,000

35452

11,000
126452
(105,000)
35,452
1L000

Ak 30 e 2021
Additons
Dispozals

At30 June 2022

Accumulated impairments

AL 30 Jure 2021
Reversal of impairments

Irmpairmen

At 30 June 2022 T

Net book value
At 30 June 2022
A7 30 June 2021

Subsidiary
undertakings

£000

AT o PRTSYn S TTEE e TS g M AR TR

2.311678
228,300

195,312
(195,312)

2,116,366

2,539,978

2,539,978

2311678
228,300

2,539,978

195212
{195,312}

2,539,978
2.116.366

Cetaits of related undertakings are shown in notg 29,

Unbsteo investments cormprise the Group's Fod.rg of the members’ capiiat of Terdo LLP,

lending

i a
busness, ang its sharehaiding in Bracker Tradirg Limited Ferr co-founded Tendo LLP in October 2012 with
Nt

of conduciing g progortion of 15 future trage through the partnerstip. Addiucns and cisoosals

Sal-Nia

1)

n
of un. sted nvestents rela’e to rvesiments and divestrnents 0 Teriao LU n line witn Ferr's <ash
reguirerments 2na o Jthise surpus furgs Farrn has a smal shaehoding in Bracken Tracing Limitea from
trne o tme. fern's mvestmentin Sracken Tradirg Lmited at 30 Jure 2022 was INIL{ 30 June 2C21 £ni

The drectors do not corsider Tendo LLP o Bracker Trad no omites 10 be subsioisry urdertakimgs of rermm

Trad.~g Linrred
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Cash includes cash in nand ard deposis renayasia on derrand

Restr'ced cash represents cash for which the Group does not nave mmediae ard Qirect atcess or for

wiich regulatory or legal requwremerzts restrict the use of tne cash.

Group

2022 2021
V S €000 . EUOO
e e L 1
Restricted A 60,592 5) 337
Cashatbankandinhand ‘ © T 286,418 172478

Rectroted cashis comprsed of £726,000 heid in Escrow and 253,866,000 of cast held ir subsigiaries with
ni-znnual d'stnbunor windows

The Compary nad a cash ba.ance of £6.422,.000 as at 30 June 2022, none of waich was restrictad (2021

one;
; PR
Group
2022 2021
B _ _ E£'000 o EN0O
Asr stock 1,538 2,185
Fel, Spare parts andg corsJarnables 26,023 18,593
Property deve.coment WP 156,918 73,923

184,479 94,711

o

The amourt of stocks recognsed as an expense during the year was £120,413,000 (2021, £41,212,000)

Included n the fuezl, spare parts and consumables stock value 13 a provision of £350.000 for unusable fue:
k{2021 ££55.000) including n property development WIP is a provision of £928,000 for warranty ard
site specfic provisions.

There has been no imgairment recogrised during the year on stock (20210 none} No inventory has teen
medged as securty for laoihties (2021 none}

The Company Fad no stocks at 30 June 2022 (2021 none),

s
PR
ety
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
I 00w

Group Company
{restated) 3
2022 2021 2022 2021 ;
w : _EO00 . £000  E00O  E£000
xﬁaunts falhng due aﬂ:er o year o R0 W20 SR AV 45T 1SS AR TR R L 488 N | A HHRan e b ¥ oot
Loans and advances to cusiomers 137,662 16,128 - -
Amounts fatling due within one year :
1 oans and advances £ clstomers 223,239 369,384 - - ;
Trade cebtors 42,050 16121 392 8
Arrounts owes Dy relaind partize inote 24) - 3850 32,950 12,751
Cither cebtors 20,199 24,972 3,843 5008
Carporation tax - €602 2,527 .
Dérivatve financial insirarments incte 213 54,409 0469 - -
Preapayments and J BCLILRG INCOME 145 602 154 375 176 32,615
T 7 e2saer  sem00: 39888 56385 !

Leans and advances to customes are stated net of provisans o £13 874,000 (2021 £18,19¢,0
Prepayrnonts and accrued ncome are stated ret of provisions of £7739.000 (2021 £13,741,00

81818
o8 ]

Ne nmierest 15 charged on amsourts owed by growp urdertak ngs, 85 the cutstanding baiances are unscecured

and repayabie on demand (2021 nona)

Note 26 detals the pror penod adjusiments
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1 T A T O G AR

{restated)
2021 2022

S Foeoo
37 732 - n47,386” e
Trade crediors 58,004 23,390 76
Other exabon and sOC ai sequrty 8,161 - -
Dither creditors 24,362 55.906 -
Arnounts due (o related parties (note 24; - = -

Finanme leases (note 16) 2,428 3147 -

AU fn L RN Bt B VR B

Bark icans ard morurmt

Daryative fimanca. instruments (note 21) - 145 -
Accruas and deferred ircormie 75 465 72 087 373
256 152 202 039 449

20,203

2 705
22 924

S BRNCIT AL S LTS N ST CUIRAUEL IR LD A O 1

Group
2022

Amounts falling due between n ot “gfnd hve years £'000

2021

£'000

P, BB A TS EBTTRRE S Tk ee vave T ] WO TRLE WM RIN I 2

Sanx loans and overdrafts (ncte 16) 383,070

Fnance loasces (note 16} 5,899
Derivative financial instrurrants (inole 213 -

er creditors 5, 364

394 353

247,257
6,125

5415

LT

Group
2022
years ' £000

Amaounts falling due after more

2021
E'00C

573,416
Finarco eases (Notwe 18] 24,676

Bank loans arnd overdrafts (note 1

Darwvatve firancial in

fumenlz (ruote 2% -

Total creditors failing due alter more than one year 992,425

598,092

577235

24495
42 772

- 644 502

903,339

The Compary has no credinors due in grezer than one year,
Amounis owed w0 relaed parties are unsecured, non-interest oearing ard repayable on demand

Note 26 details the prior pericd adjustments.




A8 - Lo o L s

e BTt B e TP

2022 2021
L. MR
e
383,070 247297
573,416 577,235

T i0ss218 s7ioi8

The Company had no bank loans st 30

June 2022,

The bank loans are secured agamst assets of the Group with each loar: as heid by ine subs dary shawr below

Cedar Energy and infrastructure Limited
ElLes Fnergy 2

Llos Lnergy 2

Eoomerang Energy Lymited
Darling:on Point Solar Farm Pty Lrrnited

Meiton Renewanle bnergy UK Tirmaed

Dulacca WE Hoidoo Py Lid

Civia Homes smmited

se Marnagemrant Lenited

Interest rate

7 mO\rh\.hth
LIBOR/EURIBOR plus 2.00%

3 month EURIBOR plus
1.20%, Fixed rate L70%

12% + & month EURIBOR
& month SONIA plus 150%

6.49% (swap rate of 459% +
1.9% margin)

& month SONIA plus 2.35%
17% + BBSY

5% + SONIA + 2 5% non-
ytilisation fee

Fixed rate 2.5%

2022

30,946 34,955
56,079 -
284,348 295,344
114,026 -
85,718 103.439
31,614 -
12,306 -
43 -
1,044,218 871918

resutted - no commercialimpact © the busrass

Finance leases

Treo fUlure munimurr finance lease caymeants are as follows

Fayrnerd

ot later thar ane year

Later than one year anc rof aaer than fve years

Later than nve yoeses

2022 2021
. £000 ., Foo0
2,428 3166

5,899 6.196

76,461 72013

84,788 81,375

(51,785) (47609)

"""""""" 33,003 33766

Tre finance leases pramaniy reate (o a leased oulding and rezlincare
lor

rental, renewal or

secured zgainst the leased 5533

The Cormpany had no finance leases at

purchase option clausaes, Rents payacle 'ncreas

M
o

B
[+)

30 June 2022

3

ipmert There are no continigent

zal riatcn Finance leases are



S
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B R T S

Decommissioning (restated) (restated)

provision Deferred tax Totat

Atmw;f\zl» S 20439 20,933 41,372
Increase recogriced in profit and loss 21 11.435 11,516
Increase recognised through otrer cornprenensive INaosre - 18,202 18,202
[ paErment 16 - 15
increase recogrised in Fxed assers 23,656 - 25656
Fecognsed on subsidary acgurs Ions - (3.568) (3,568)
Adjusten: ir respec of prior years - (5.465) {5465)
inwanaing of discouns 249 - 245
Adjustren: refating to change in accountng estimate {3.373) - (3.37%)
At 30 June 2022 41,023 41, 597 82,620

The decommissioning provision 15 held to cover future obligations to returr lana on which tnere are
operational wind, biomass and solar farms, to ther onginal condinon. The amounts are not expected o be
dttliced for in excess of 25 years,

The Compary nad no provisions at 30 June 2022,

MNote 26 detais the prior period ad ustmeants

RO O A USRI L LI S FE RSN S SN

The Grous and Company have the fellowng snare capital

Group 2022 2021
Allotted called -up ; and fully pald o £’0qq R Mf'OOO
1.616,622,011 2041 14698,755 Zi&' 161,662 149676
Ordinary shares of £0 110G each '
Company 2022 2021
Allotted, called- -up and fully pa |d £'000 - E000
,ﬁ)l{:,,ﬁf_é,cll ("021 1,4.16,/_/), o} ?_‘u 16L652 145 576

Ordinary shares of £0 10 sach

During the year the Croup 1ssued 113,866,754 (2021 1,501,199,278 } ordinary sharec of £0.10 each for an
aggregate nominal value of 211,987,000 2021 £150,120.00C). Of the shares issuad curing the year, total
cons-deration of £203,750,000 (2021 £2,316,695,00G0) was pad for the snares, giving rise 1o a premium of
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191,763,000 (2021 ©273.118,0C0). Dur ng the year the Group puwrcrased ~i (2021 4,422, -”OO) of s own
ordinary shares of 20 10 each with an aggregate nominai vaiwe of £l 12021 £444 1001 Tora: consideration
of Bl (2021 26,844 C0C) was pa:d for the shares, gwing rse 1 a premium of £nil kaozl: 5,6,3991000).

The Group nas adopred pr decessor accoun:ing princ.pies as it was formed as part 0% a grous

It w
recorstrucion, theretcre the share caplial and share premum account sre treatea as if thiey nad always
existed. Maoverrents . share Captal ansing both before ana afer the restrclure are repcrteg as rcvernents

in the Group share cap al

Durng the year tne Company ssued 119866754 (2021 2501199278 crdinary srares of £0 10 each for a-
aggragate nomimal value of £11,267.003 (202
consideration of £203.750.000G (2027 £2.314
£191 764, OOE‘J (2021 E2,166.575,0001 Cunng
ordinary thares G £0.10 each with an aggregate nominal velue of £t (2021 £444 300) Total condideration
of Lnil (2021 £6,844,000 was pad for the shares, giving rise fo & pramiurm of £l (zCZl £5,339 000

10 E£150,120 0007 OF tne shares issuec during tre yaar, total
6950001 was paid for the shares, gving rise o 3 gremium of

A

G the year the Group purchased nil (éua 4,444 020 of 'ts owr

)

Trere is a single class of ordinary snares. There are ne restnct'crs ¢n the cistibuncn of dwidends and the

recayrment of capital

Cash flow hedge reserve

The cash llow hedge reserve 15 wsea to record transacions ansng rom the Group's
fiedging arrangements

o

cash flow

Merger reserve

Tre merger resaqve arices from the aifference belweer tre far value of the sharas -scues and tne bock
vaiues of the subsidanes acaured
48 SR

The mevarrant in non-cortraiing interesis was as follows

Group
Note 2022 2021

Group ‘ - - N £‘QQO .;noo .
AT Juiy 2‘21 3,721 9,570
Sale ol s Ty LNGErEkings and acsusus -

sale of subsidiary uraertakurgs an asttion 57 _ 1.847)
OF NoN-Cenoung interest

O3l COMprenensye ss tabie b
Toa! oreret 755 atribiutabis 1o (6.622) (4.007)
ﬂO."I*C rﬂ"r ey irnorests

(2 901) 372t
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
200

As at 20 June 2022 there were ne cortingercies acress the Groap of Company

o A

Carrying amounts of financial assets and Laonit

Group Company

{restated)
2022 2021 2022 021
Group £000 £000 £000 £'000

AR aE e n e r e Gedavaa et e TR W ANEMS G TG RRHS %R BREGREATE o RES e e e Bk

Carrying amount of financial assets

Debt instrurmerts measurad at amaorhsed cost 423,150 430,556 4,235 17767

ual profit and loss - 5,469 - -

..54,499 . ST T

Measured at fair vaue through other comprerensive income

Carrying amount of financial liabil

Measured at amortised Cost 1,126,163 356,384 76 16

swred at far value through other comprehensive incorms - 42,772 - -

" & = o : A i 5 5 e e il LB TR
Note 26 details tne pricr pered adiustments O
RN
GeehduEn e R ey
eI i 3 \\\»33\

M TR e e

L R
EEMNG e
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Derivative financial instruments
Tre Group's financial ngk management seeks 1o rminimise the exposure o mMarxet nsk, credic nsk, ugu:dity
and cash flow risle, and energy market risi

a) Market risk
Energy market risk
Tre emergy sector s expenendd

i
w
\9]
2
-
1
£
w
=
.
j
=
o
Lf
[
>
0
[41]
Qs
]
Q.
4
=)
D
m
n
)

not ackhieved due o chan g s n wholesale emefgy prices, off-taze contracts or government subsiches
in reguced income streams wiihin the

group due to addtonal lev.es.

Currency risk
The Growp presents its corsobdated firancia statemerts in steriing ana conduciz DUSINEss 1 a numoer o

otner currencies, principally Euro ana Ausiralan dollar Conseguently, the Group 1s exposea to foraign
excharge r sk due to excnange rate movernsnts, which affect the four‘ s rransact onal expenses and the
rransiation of earning and nel assets of s nor-ster.ng operations

Transactional exposures
Transactioral exposures arize from adrmmisirat ve and other expenze i currencies otier than the Group's

[

presentational currency (Serling). The Group erters in to forward for2igr excharge conracts ard foreign
excharge swaps to mitigate the exchnange rate risk for certamn foreign currency payabies and receipts. The

forward currency conrac

ard swzps are messured af fair value, whick s determined using valuation
techrigues that utilise observable inputs The key npuss used in vaung e dervatives are the forward
excharge rates for GBP.AUD arg JR' BUR Or 30 June 2022 the fair vaue of the foreign curercy
contracts was an asset of £ (2021 £6,463.0C0) ard z tabilty of £ni (2021 £143,000).

Translational exposures

Baiance smaoet traﬂs\atior‘ai EXDCIUres ar orcation on the retranslat:on of the balance sheet of

&
on-sening operabions nto steriing, the Croup's presenta*wral currency The level of exposure is reviewed
by managemernt and the pommg foreign exchange movemenrt is

‘j

minan accepzab&e level oF risk and

th ore, icar rOLp’s IO NOUIO aclvely Nedga Tress & res
therefare, typicaly, tre Group's policy 1o not to actvely hadge trese exposures

Interest rate risk

The Sroup has exposure o fluctuaions ininterest rates on is borrowings. Where the Croug enters inte
Corowng arrangerments with ficating rate interest, a swap arrangerrer: s entered nto to fix a gorticn of
the interest i oraer 1o Mitgate againe ar increase innterest rates. The porucn of interest © be fixed
assessed On 8 €ase Ly case tasis. Maragement can elect whether 1o nedge account for inese

ements on an indyvidual ransaction basis and have elecea:

9]

r cly r‘.edge accounting for nterest
ne Swaocs are bazed o0 a pr n::pat aTicunt of the ioar factly and mature or the same date.
o

O 30 Jure 2022 tre outstanaing rierest rate g s have 3 r‘”afufltf ir excess of five years ard the far

valle s in an asset posihon of £54£ 405000 (202‘.‘ Idbl ity of £42.62%.C0C

Price risk

The Groug s & sta-t- to meaium-terr lender to the res dertal properyy marke! 7o the exrent t-al thera s
1

detenoratio™ n e leve, of house prices tnst afects the propertes
e

agarst, there s g ns< tnat toe Group may nol recoun its ful
l

sk that forecast ievels of incorme are
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b) Credit risk
Customer credit riskos mitgaed through the Group's cred:t coniro, poiicies, wrich aré 10 glace 10 ensure
tnat cur customers have an appropriate credt hustory and are monitored on an ongoeng bas

) Liquidity risk

Ligu'dity risk are rmmanaged by ersuning thal sufficient cash is avalaole ro fund cortinairig ard fuiure operatons.
J

J

Licu dity risk arses on hanx ©ans in pace across the Group and is mansged rrougn careful monioring of
covenanis and sensibe levels of gebt Borrowing s on a long-term bas s, whereas our reverue is receved
througnout the year, as weil as nterest and redernot.ons on our short-term loan boak. Cash flow risk s
maraged through onccing cash flow forecasting o0 ensure receipts are sufiicient 1o meel labildies as they
fail cue.

22 o0 o

At the year end the Group had captal commitrments as follows

2022
Group E'OOO
Contracted ‘or buf not prow. dp in the;ﬂ financial staterments 347,254
Urdrawn faciit ez on ioans to borrawers 173,600

At 30 June the Group had toal future minirrurm lease payments under ron-cancellatble operating leases
as follows

2022 2021

Land and Other Land and Other

buildings buildings
O . L. £000 F000  £000
—— G,Je‘_ b i o Fench TR 2 T TS X YOO . e S s B0
Mot later than one year 8,707 661 8,05 749
Later than one year and not later than five 31,627 726 30,369 1686
years
iater than five years 95,664 - 118832 S 9 ‘

135,998 1,387 157,332 2444

The Group had no other off-palance shee: arrangerments (2021 none),

Lnder sections 394A and 4794 of the Comgarses Act 2006, the parent company Fern Trading Limited has
guaranteed al ourstanding liabiities o those comparies taking the exemption to wnich the sussidianes list
con pages 79 o 90 were sublect to at the 30 June 2022 until they are satisied in full, These liadlities total
£915m Such guarantees are enforceable agairst Fern Trading Limitad by any person to whomr any such

liatnlity is due.

Tre Compary had no capital or other commitmerts at 30 June 2022




EEZ Lo oo T s LT e i e e e

on 11 July 2022, Fern Trading Developrment Limited {"FTD), a subsidiary of tre Group, successiully sold i
Master Trust Asmrall proft of £850,0008 was made

Darlingten Point Holdco Pty Limited to Octeopus Australiz

on the saie

Or the 1st of Decemt
rmabie icarses from Three UK via a Strategic Connectivity Agreement, thus maxrg the first steg towards

2022, the Group acquired nghts to a £25m credt voucher and the rgrt to use

becemiing an mokbile virtual network operator.

Under FRS 162 33
members of & Group, provided that any supsidiary which s a oarty to the transaction =8 w%owy owned oy
such a member

AA disclosures rneed not be given of transactions entered ‘nto betweer two or more

Dunng the year, fees of £77534 000 (2021 £6

154 G0CY were charged to the Grodp by Octopls ;
related party due to 1ts sign
Ll

investmen:s L\mite‘c‘, a if.eant mnfllence over the entity Octopus; Iryestiments
- . . . WA e A E e . H
Lirritec was recrarged ‘ogat and p*@@g ona. fees toraling £10.055 (2021 £1€.000) by t-e Grous. AT the |
i
year ena, an amaount of £5,500 (2021 £21%000) was cutstand ng which s included v trade crediters :

D

Grodg is ertitled to a profi share as a result of s invesiment .n Tende LLP, a related party due wo key
Managerren: perscrnel in commorn. In 2027 a share of proft equat to £5,24%,000 (2021 £442.000] nas

been recognised by the Group At the year erd, the CGroup nas an interes in the mermber’s capital of
q ¥ ¥
£35,452,000 {2021 £17,602,000) and accrued income due of £5,276,00C (2021, £479.000)

Tre Grodp encagdaos in lenairg activities which include balances provided (o related parties. Regardng
entines witm <ey managerient perscnnel n commor, loans of £63.490,000 (2021 £173,224 000}, accrued .
income of £19,78G.000 (2027 £26,2035,000) and deferred income of £ry (2021 ) were SLisiaraing ‘
atyear end. Durng fae year interest srcome of £7..60,000 (2022 £17,581.000) anc fees 4000 2021
£53£,000! weare recognisea in re.alon 1o these (oans i
Curing the year the Group acquired 9 reserve power companies from comganies manages by Coiopls :
Irvestments Limited. a related party See note 27 a) for detalls of the comparies acguired. f
;
i
As at 30 sune 2022 Ln 21 £3.950,275) was owed to the Comgoany by Bracken Trading Lim+ed, a relatea §
Larty Dy Kéy managemen: perzonnel in comraon 3

Other tan the trarsactions aisclosed aoove, the Comoany’s Sther re ated party transactiors were win 175 :
wholly owreg u b;ﬁd:ary rmerrbars o the Grouo

I tne opmion of the gireciors, there 15 ~C Liimale ConTre. Ng Darty or parent compary

",
vwm‘:‘&“
PP BORINS M hn wa ¢

T




4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
26 0 o oS aT

a) Group structuring review

We have concuctea 2 review of prior years’ acoountung treatment of intercompany resfructuring In triis
review menagerent identfied unamornsed goadwil haances n relauon to these transactuons We have
adjused the previous years to reflect the implerrentation of amortisat on backdated o wnen the relevant
transactions cocurred Thne aooumu aL“d impact for the goodwil amortisation in the profit and loss for 2021
was L8 (2020 ES I the movemnent of £2. 7 has been restated througnout tre 2021 comparative

s
L
nureers A SLme

3

ary of the mgeact of the correct on s provided below

Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) {restated}
Group £ 000 S £‘000 e E'000
Geodwill 583 988 (5 33 ) 578 653
Retarad eamings 41,185 5335 46,520
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated)
Group _— - ) ) ) £'000 £000 E'000
Coodwill 602711 (2,049) 554,662
Retalred carnings (122,920 8.049 (115,871

As part of tne review of the intergroup restructuring menuoned above, maragement identified one of the
restruciures had beer incorrecty accourted for in 2 sub section of the group. No further errors were
discovered 'n the review "he accumuiated impact for gocdwill amorusatuon in the profit and loss for 2021
was £2.5m (2020, £1.3m), the movement cf £1 2m ras been restated throughout the 2021 comgarative
rumbers Thisimpact o the 2020 openirg retained earnings was offset by £2 Im written back against bad
debt expenses Management have corrected the dentfied error w.th the following imoact

Year ended Adjustments Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)

Group ) o o £'O00 £’000 £'000
Goocwil ‘ T eez0es 129183) 554,805
Retained earnngs 41,185 899 42,084
Cebiors 842,54¢ (2.724) 839,825
Crediors arnounts faling due within one year (232,813 496 (232.317)
Fixed assets 1,346,655 30.512 1,377,167
Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30June 2021

(as stated) (restated)

Group £'000 £'000 £'000
C;f‘( N|| oo e 602711 (27.963) 574,748
Retaired earnings {123,920) {321) (124,241)
Dentors 600,726 (2724} 588,002
Creditors arnounts falling due withir ong yoear {207,318) 496 (206,822)

Fixed gsse1s 1,551,170 30,512 1,581,682
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Deferred tax adjustment

We have conguced a review of all consolidat on entres ar subpsections of the group We have identified an
error relating (o 2019 when geferred tax agusiments were entered as a consolidation entry and haa
subsequenty not been reversea, We have checked the tax per subsidiary account and have ensured that the
relevant Balances are correct The eror was oasted at a consol dated level only and has now been correctes

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020

{as stated) ({restated)

Group 4 ~_£o00 £'000 £'000
Remamned sarmings 41,185 (4.764] 36421
Creditors amourts faling due w tan cre year (232,813 4764 (228.048)

Tris has a knocx eftect into June 2021 the restated balarces ars &2 faliows:

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30.Junec 2021 30 June 2021
{as stated) (restated)
. £‘000 E£'000 £ 000
Retained eamnings (123,920} (4,764) (128 684}
Creditors amounts falng due with n one year {207.318) 4,764 (202.554)

in prepaneg the tax comporations for 2022, e Groug's tax advisors have 1ot:ced ar overiocked
assurplion i previous years fax consolicaton calculations. Withi Ine graviously Jnrecognises deferrad tax

assets nela with in the groud <eme were aval.abie on g consolicaied wevel 10 offset the Group's ceferred tax

landity On an i~dividual compary bazis the deferred tax in previcus years had teen corracty recogrised. A

part of thess deferred assets are in relation @ cash Qow nedgas hele witnn the group which are accourted

for witkimn other :O"“’I;J encrsive incarme, The accuma.ated impact for the tax charge ir the proht ard loss
for 2021 was £15m (20207 £15 3mj the mavenent of 300k has teer restaten threughout the 2021
Compargtive numigers

Asurrmary of the impact of the corecion s groviaes pelow:

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) {restated)
Group £000 E'000 o £000
Rewainec eamings 41,185 (15,299} 25,886
Cash fiow heage reserva 63,837 {3.875) 59,962

Deferrad fax prosions 136,484} 19174 117,310}
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Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) {restated)
Group : e 000 goo0 . FoO0C
Er;:\:»ﬂ"*w;ﬂrn W(me.w. e (12\3“3;5(*3}“% ST (15 095) R (1%0“13) ’
Cash fiow ke 17098 {(2.119) 14579
ZmJewfer e (38,145} 17.217 {(201,973)
Summary of prior period adjustments:
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) {restated)
Group o S £'000 £000 £'000
P‘?‘&;l‘ede;mr;: donen o v e T § R R S e APre ey -~ 27%: 6
Gooowi 583,588 {24,517} 549,471
Ceblors 842 549 12,724] 839.825
Fixed assels 1,346,655 50,512 1377167
Deferred tax provsons (36484} 19,174 (17.310)
Cash flow 1ecge reserve 63,837 (3.875) 59562
Credrors arnounts faling due within one year (232,813} 5259 (227.554)
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 20 June 2021
(as stated} (restated)
Group ) ‘ £'000 £'000 £'000
;eudmpdwmgd ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, ( 15j93(3) PR, [1g o e
Goodwil 602,711 (36,011) 566,700
Debtors 600,726 (2.724) 598.002
Fixed assets 1551170 30,512 1,581,682
Defarred tax prov'sions (38,145} 17.212 (20,933)
Cash How necge reserve 17.098 (2.119) 14,975
Crediors armnounts falling due within one year (207 %18} 5,255 (202.059)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

R

a) Reserve Power acquisition
Cn 2 July 2020 the Group acaured 9 rezerve power stes through the purchase of 10
faor consideration of £18.

re following tasie

e the corziderat

on paid oy the G

ana e habilites assumed at the acqguisiten date

et

cup, tne far vawe of the

1% of the share captal

assets actuired

Consmeratlon £000
Total consideration -
Derals of the fair value of trie net assets acqured and goodwil ansng are as foliows

Book value Adjustments Fair value

SaEnten

Fiked assets

Trade and other receiables

Prepaymenrts
Cash anc Casn eguvalenits

frade and other creaiions

Total conslderatnon

g TR SRR e O R S

£000

80,788
2494
635

7.858

(2,206}

28,553

e PR AR e o YEREERGS so

_158.816]

£000

Rk eanakeen TSR 3B

(28,552

(28,553)

£000

AR RALER R e % B L

52,235
2594
635

7858

{2206}

(58, 216)

Goodwill resulurg from th

“re consoldated s tapmrm o ate
profit ater tax of £686,00

mpmbenswe roeme for the

e busiress combinaton was nil,

ct of this acqusiion
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b} Deveryard Limited acquisition
On 22 October 2021, the Groug acaurec Doveryard Lirmited andg its subsichary through the purchase of
100% of the share capital for conf\dﬂrdnom >f £13,414,000.

The foillowing tahles surmmarise the consideration paid by the Group, the fair value of assets acquired, ana
labilties assumea at the acgusition date

Consideration . ... ; SR . £'000
Cash : dn ey B aEe KGR TSGR < LR AR SR AR £ et <k Eoren a4 o res 1" . 12’37};
Directly Jltmutablﬁ fosd l Q37
Tofa[ cons;derauon e L s e e 15 oot <4 eere e+ © eem e e e e e 13 414“‘
Detaiis of the farr value of the net assets acqguired and goocwill arising are as foilows

Book Adjustments Fair

values value

£000 £000 . £'000
Trade ang omher receaples 52 - 52
Prepaymen:s and accrued Income 193 - 183
Trade anc oiner creditor 5 (467) - {46/)
Netassetsacquired 3z - 347
\mor i B Ce e it e e e e e 13:067
Tmalcons'demtlon e e et s £+ 124 e e e s+ e e 13 414.,

Coodwil rasulting from the busiress combination was £13 067,000 and has an estimated useful life o 25
vears. reflecting the Ifespan ¢ the assets acguired.

_{
=
65
8
o]
3
wr
o
O
W)
2

ataa starement of comprehensive ncome for the year includes £nil of revenue and a loss
hefore tax of 2122000 in respect of trus acguisinon
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

c) Dulacca acquisition
On 27 August 2021, tne Group acguired Dulacca WE Holdeo 2TY Lid and its tnree subsidiaries through the i
purchase of 100% of the share capital for consideration of £115683,00C

Tre fcilowing tables sumimarise the consideratior paid oy the Groun, tre ‘air value of the astets acquired,
znd the liabilites assume at the acau'sition date A list of the entit es acqurred incluged in note 29

Considerati ) ~_AUD'0O0  Exch. nge | Rate E'OOP
Drr :th,f attribatabie Costs 1126 18964 595
Total connderatuon - S 218 683 T 115 680

Details of the farr value of “he net assets acquired and intangible ansing are as follows

Book Adjustments Fair Book Adjustments Fair
values value values value
AUD’OOO . AUD 000 AUD0OOD = £000 . £000 ) £'000
e e 107‘633 s 107633 PR 16937 e 55937
Trade and otner recewvables 136,131 - 10,131 5,357 - 5357
Cash and cash equivaionts 103,072 - 103,072 54,525 - 54,525 |
A fruats 10 ﬁic 2T (10 ng) - (lO 352} (5, 79'4‘ - 15,793} :
Net assets acqulred - zos 884 o 209 ss4mw ivu 026 o J.ii 626 '
Irfangb o o - - 8 799 ST 4 634
Totalconsnderatlon S 218 6837 S 115 680 ‘

ntangitles resulting from the asset purchaze was £4,654,000 and has an estimated usetu life of 30 yaars, |
ts ac

reflecting tne lifespan of the assets acgured.

The conscldated staterment of comprehens ve income for the year incudes Enil of reverue and a loss after
tax of £237000 in respect of th-s acquisitior,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

d) Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition
On 31 January 2021, the Group acqured Zestec Asset Mafgomem Limuted & proje arces for rooftop

=Ct
solar, through e purchase of 100% of the share capiiad “or consideration of £4,765.0 C
The foliowing tables summarise the consideration paid by the Group. the farr value of azsets acguired, and

dabilities assumed at the acguis.tion date.

Consideration

waama o TRRE au B RORTWETRS 5 e pehedRETRTA Men BERGRBEEEYER w1 ARECRNESESG RFAORAY LR AT s kR b RS b v e hi o b vk o Ve TINE LT TR s

Cash

Ceterred consideratan -

_J!rCf_tj attrisutanle ¢ Nts

Totalconsnderatlon ' S . 4,765

Cetzils of the far value of the nat assats acquired and gooowill arizing are as follows,

Book Adjustments Fair

values vatue

£000 LE000 e EO00
Trede ard orer credions (574) - (574)
Trade ard otner recevables 400 - 400
Casn ard cash equiva.enis 1719 - 1019
Othf\r cans (46) - {46)
Netssmetsacuired egg o

5810

Totalconsmeratlon - 4755

Goodwill resulting from the buziness combinanon was £3,810,0C00 and has an astimated usetul tife of 16
years, reflecting the estimated lifespan of the assets acquired

The consolidaed staternent of comaorehensive income for the year includes £198,00C of revenue and a loss
before tax of £494 000 ir respac: of this acgJisition.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

e} Elivia Homes acquisition

On 23 May 2022, the Group acquirea Elvia Holdings Lmited ana ts subsiciaries, through tie purchase of

100% of the share capital for consideration of £31,684.000

The folowing tables sumrmarise the consideraton paid by the Group, the “a'r va.e of assets acqu red, ard

labilites assumed a1 the acguisition date. A list of the entities acquired are included ir note 29.

Consideration £000
Cash SO 999
Directly attnoutable Costs 685

Total consideration

31684

Detals of the fair value of the net assets acquired and goodwill ansing ave as “olows.

Book Adjustments

values

£000
Irtangile assets 11,767 -
Stock 69,939 -
Trade and other debtors 2.609 -
Cash and cash equvaionts 11.603 -
Accruals and defarred incorme 1420) -
Frovisions (330} -
Deferred tax 6,000 (1400}
Trdd@ ang otrer o (69.453) -
Net assets acquwed oo W;?;S:,SBS ) (1,400)MH

(:\)")J\N 1

Total consuﬁerahon

4600

(£9.453)

30,433

1 E51
31 684

Goodwll resulting from the business combimation was £2,551,C000 and has an estimated seful life

years, reflocting the lifespan of the assets acqu req

*1

he consot datea state

o
rofit before tax of £1.502,0300 in respect of this acquisitior

o

of 10

ement of cormprenensive ncame for tne year inciuoes revenue of £25.034,200 and &
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

BE oo s T AN T o e

Our reparted results are prepared in accardarae with United K ngdom Accounting Standarcs, inciuding
Finarcial Reporting Standara 102, as detaled i the Francial Staterments staring on page 35 of tha Annual
Report. Ir reasuring our gerformance, the financal meatures that we use include those that have teer
derved from our reported results ir order 1o eliminate factors that distort year-cn-year compansons. These
are considered non-OAAF hinancial measares

Net debt
We provide per dent inagdition ©© cash and gross debil as a way of assesany our overail £23h posit on and
s computed as follows.

2021
L0000

e e T R RAL

[ S R EREeNTRITASETARAY S RRTRRTE PITARY FRA6 ARVAS 04vnan e wTdwnd f

Bark iwans and overdrafts 16 1,044,218 871918
5, _:64 -

Gross debt ST T e 1049 582 871 918

d n nana - 1 (256415} (1/2478)

(,th ol ccm« ar
Net debt 793, 167 699 440
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EBITDA :
Earnings before interest, tax, deprec anon and amaorisal on (LB DAY 18 calcuiated by adusting profit after
tax forirterest, tax, depreciation and amortisation, 1© additior 1 ncome ang espenses that do rot relae 1o :
the day to cay operations of the Greup We provide EBITDA in additor to proit after tax as it allcws us o
assess our performance without the effects of financing and capita. expenditures !
Tre fodowing table detals tne adjusiments made to the reported resu’s '
(restated) f

2022 2021 ;

Note EG0Q oo
Bmml(lo;s)fortheﬁnancnatyear - Bt 31310« . (3101)
Add
Arnortization of intangible assots 37849 37704
Irmpairrrent of mtargbie assets 8 7913 z
Depraciation of tang te asseis 2 101802 84,69/ i
interest payab.e and sirmitar expenses & 33,554 36.067
Exceptional tems 1105 -
Tax 7 16,204 8349 f
Less
ircorme teorm other ired asset mvestments {5.249} 1449) ‘
Srare of operating pro‘iuin oMt venture - (1.755) ,
Frosfit on cisposal of subsidianes (29,532} 128,568}
Irterest meeivable and emdar ncorne & {130} (997) !
ERITDA - o 194,916 104,036 !
Note 2€ details the prior period adjustmerts ‘
i
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

2% ol Laangs

Deans of the subsid.ary undertakings are as follows:

Abbots Ripton Sclar Energy Holding Limited™

Adaunda Solar SPV 1 Lmited”™
Agrisoi-2 SARL?

Al Networks Lirnited™
Allocints Fibre Limitea®™”

tachencar-och Erergy Limitad®”

Asguhirie Lard Company Limritegt?

Aereniue Solar Farm Limited”
Barbury Power Limitad”™
Bausniaire 5 SARL?
Barisoaire 7 SARLY

Beetley Energy Limited™
Beightorn Energy Limized’
Beinneun Wind Farm Lid™
Belthouse Energy Limited”
Birck £state Solar Limized”
Blaby Sclar Farm Limited™
BNRG IOW Limited”
Bolam Ernergy Limites™
Boomerang Energy Lirnited
Boreas Energy Limited™
Bratton Fleming Limiteg™

Breck Soiar Limited”™”

Bryn Yr Cdyn Solar Devewopments Holaings

Lirmsted™

Bryn Yr Odyn Solar Developments Limited™

Bury Power Limited™
Cadorion Reserve Power Limited™
Ca'clas tnergy Limiteg”

Car Lirnited®

Holding activity

Principal

Country of Class of

...\ncorporation  shares

- UK Crdinary 1007
UK Crchnary 100%
France Ordinary 1007%
UK Ordinary 160%
UK Ordinary 150%
UK Ordinary 100%
LK Ordinary 1007%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
France Ordinary 100%
France Qrdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Qrdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
Ireland Ordinary 100%

Holding cor;par{y
Erergy generaticn
Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre network
praduction

Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Ernergy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Daormant company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding compary

Energy generation

o
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

Rt s F7 T ssens PO R Ao

T TS R ST

Caswell bclaf Carm metea

Cathken Energy Limizeq?”

Causlgey Limitec™

Cedar Erergy and infrastruciure Limted

CESE Berceronne SARL

Centrale Eo Lerne de Producnon o’ Snergie de

Grancbos SARLY

CFPZ du pays de 5t Se

CERS S.A S

Chelson Meadow Er

Pz ~aut du Saule

Certrale Tolien

PE de Marsarine SARLT

7

uatre Qv eres SARLS

ne SARLY

nergy Lmited””

Chispon Soiar Farm Haoldings Limited”

Chittenrg Solar

Cigwyn Energy L

Two Limited™

irnitacl”

Clarn Farm Limitea™

Clararnond

C\’U

Soiar SPV L Limited”

Deveinpments Limited”

CL? Envirogas Limited™

ZLPE H2iaings Liried ™

CL7E Srogecrs 1y

CL=E Progec

tted

5 2 Lamited™

T ST Protects 2 Limed”

TP RO -1 Limated™
CLPE ROC -2 umted”
CLPE ROC - 2 Limiten

ne oe
dp Lacombe) SARLT

Country of
|ncorporatioﬂ

UK
UK
LK
UK

France
France
France
France

France
France
France
France
France
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK
LK
LK
UK

sharas

JCRNEN

Class of

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

QOrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordirary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Holding
IOO/QA
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
160%

100%
160%
100%
10G7%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1060%

Principal
activity

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
Energy generat:on
Energy generation
Energy generation
olding company
Energy generation
Holding comparny
Energy generation
Dormant company
Energy generation
Energy generaticn
Dormant company

Provision of O&M
SeTVICaS

Dormant company
Bermant company
Holding cornpany
Holding company
Holding cormpany
Holding company
Hoiding company
Energy generat:on
Energy generation

Energy generation

T T




31

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

B R g A R AR E Rt g nan e B B 8 LA n e 70 S DY WO g g R N §

CLPE ROC - A Limued”

CLPE ROC - 4 Limited™

CLPT ROC - 2A Limniteg™

Ciyne Power Limted”

Costerworih Energy Limted™”
Cornor Bridge tnergy Lirniteg”™
Coteshach Energy Limited™

Cour Wird Farm (Scotend} Limiteci®
Crapneli Farm Limited™

Crayfern Homes (South Coast) Limited?!

Crayfern Limitegt!

Crayfern Sunley (Slinfoldd Lirmted't

Craymarsh Limited™

Cressing Solar Farrm Lirmuted™
Culvery Power Limited™

Cynon Power Limied”

Cafen Reserve Sower Limited”™

Da:ry House Solar Limited”™
Ceepdsle Farm Solar Limiteg™
Doveryard Limited"™

Drapers Farm Limiteg”

Dulacca Energy Project Co PTY Ligh?

Dulacca Erergy Proect FInCo PTY Ltd'*

Dulacca Energy Project Holdco Co PTY Ltg™

Dulacca WF Hoideo PTY LtdH
Cyffryn Bradyn Limited™
Eakring Limited™

lecsol Camargue SARLY
Elecscl Frarce 7 SARL®
Elecsal France 11 SARLY
Elecsol France 15 SARLY

Elecsel Frarce 10 SaRL*

Country of Class of
incorparation  shares .
UK Ordinary
U Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Qrdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
K Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
Australia Ordinary
Australia Ordinary
Australia Ordinary
Australia Ordinary
UK OCrdinary
UK Ordinary
Frarice Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary

Holding

B3 e R B

100%
100%
100%
100%
1007%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
10C%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
90%

S0%

100%
100%

activity

Principal

Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Eneray generation

Development of
building projects

Construction of
domestic buildings

Development of
bullding projects

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Haolding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation

e e s
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

s0. France 24 SARL!

ecso. France 25 SARL®

S0 France 28 SARL®

o. France 41 SAR|L*

Flecsol Haut var SARLY

Clios
Elios
Elios
Elios
Elios
Elios

Elios

Elhvia

Elivia

Elivia Ho

Elivia

Elrvia

Elpvia

Elivia

Elrvia

Eliva

Energy 2 France SASS
Ernergy 2 Limited

Ernergy 3 France SASY
Eqergy Aold ngs 2 Limited”™
Energy Heidngs 2 Limited™
Enargy Holdings Lamited”

Renewarle Energy Limited™

Develcpment Finance Lirmited ™!

Foldings Limited

Centralf Limited-*

)
3
3

i

Tes (Dormant 23 Linited™

Q

Hormes (Grange Road! Limited*!
Homes (Netley) Limited®

Fomes (Southerr) Limited ™!

Flivig MNorth |

Elivia

Elivia

Orforg Lmited”

SoJtn umitent!

oy, KR | TEUTT Ry SR  H

st France 22 SARL?

Country of Class of
) N incorporagion Mshares )
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Qrdinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Crdinary
UK Ordinary
France Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
Ordinary

UK Deferred
Preference

UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordmary
UK Grdinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary

Holding activity

100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1002

100%

100%

160%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal

Energy gener;ﬁon
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Haolding company
Holding company
Holding compary
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Construction of

domestic buildings

Financial services
holding companies

Construction of
domestic buildings

Construction of
domestic buildings

Construction of
domestic buildings

Devewspment of
building projects
Construction of
domestic buildings

Construction of
domestic buildings

Development of
building projects

Devetopment of
building projects

Construction of
domestic buildings
Buying and seling of
own real estate

Construction of
dornesuc buildings
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal

Name @ _Incorporation shares ...HoWing actvly i
roreta S o y USRS sria) Mhivghas : S mwwd(‘jhcnmstrgct;om -
Fuvia Southern Liried®? UK Ordinary 100% g(jﬁ?fmg‘ggggg@f

own real estate
Elicambe Lirmted™ UK Crchinary 100% Energy generation

Energy project
Frergy Power Resanrces Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Crfav:iogg:;:zi and

SErvIces
EFR E y Limuted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy genaration
EPR Eye Lirrited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
EPK Glarifard Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
EPR Renewable Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
EPR Scotfland Limitea® UK Crdinary i00% Energy generation
EPR Thetford Limied” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Eucalyptus Energy Haoldirgs Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding cempany
Eocalyptus Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Feltwell Ene-gy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Fern Energy Cour Holdings Lirmited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Fern Energy Holdngs Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Energy Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Energy Wind Holdings Limited™ Ux Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Fiore Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Heslthcare Holdirgs Lirmted™ UK Ordinary 1G0% Holding company
Fern infrastruciure Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Renewable Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Haolding company
Fern Rooftop Solar {A) Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Fern Rooftop Solar (BBDY UK Ordinary 1G0% Energy generation
Fern Rooftop Solar {Zestec) Limited” UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Fern Trading Development Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Trad.ng Group Limited LUK UK 160% Holding company
Fern UK Power Developrments Limited™ UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
F.brophos Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Supply of fertiliser
Four Burrows Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Frassthiorpe Wnd Farm Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Name

R s S Y SESEE g i s § SRR

Country of

incorporation

Class of

shares

Principal

Holding ) activity\ -

Garlaff Energy Lirmited®

Giganet Fibre Lig™

Giganet Lircited™

Giencnamber Wind Erergy Limited

Grange Wind Farm Limited”
Guardonde SRz oot
Harbodrne Power Limitea™

Hayrnaker (Mount Milg Lid™

Haymaker {(Natewond) —~cldings Limited™

Hayrnaker (Natewood) _ud”

Hayrnaker (Oakiands) Hold ngs Limited™

Hayrnaker {Caklards) Ltd™
Helw Power 2 Limited™”
Helm Power Lirmsed”
Higher Knacp Farm Lmited™
Hill Erd Farm Lmited ™
Hollarnoor Limiten™

Fusl Reserve Power Linmiteg”
Hursit SPV 1 Limited™”
Imrrangharn Power Lmtad™

Irwell Power Uimcea”

Jameson Road Energy Lirnited™

Surassic Fibre Holaings Limited”

Jurazs.c Fore Limited

Langan Sower | rted”
Lenfar: Solar Lirnited™
Littie T Solar Limined™
Liztleron Sciar Sarm L e’
LU Commuanications Ld™

Loddon Power L ted”™

s

UK

UK

UK

UK
UK
Poland
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordmary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
1G0%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
10C%
100%
100%
100%
100%
90%

90%

100%
100%
160%
100%
100%

160%

100%

Cormant company

Fibre network
product:an

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generat:on
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Helding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding cornpany

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy generaticn

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
e st raiCOFpOTAtion  shares ~  Holding activity
Lovedean Lirnmted™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Luminarce sotar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
M12 Zowticns Limted™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding cormpany
Manstor: Thorme Limied” UK Crdinary 100% Erergy generation
March Energy Limted” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Marden Power Lmited™ UK Ordinary 100% tnergy generation
Marley Thatch Solar Limitec™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Meadows Farm Lirmited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Melbaurn Solar Limited™ LK Ordinary 100% fnergy generation
Meitor LG Energy Limitad™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Melton LG Holding Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Meiton LG ROC Limited™ UK Ordinary ~ 100% é;ii;fj‘;'”g
Meiton Renewable energy (Heldings) Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Melton Renewsble Energy Newco Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Meiton Rerewsble Energy UK Limited UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Mill HiL Farm Solar cimited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Mingay rarm Hoiding Lirmized™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
MEP Decoy Ltd™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
MSP Strete Ltd™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
MSE Tregassow Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
MTS Hatchlands Solar Lid™ UK Crdinary 160% Energy generation
hNevern Power Limiteg™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
MNew Row Farm Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Newlands Sclar Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
MNiris Farmn Lmited™ K Crdinary 100% Energy generation
North Perrott Fruit Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Northwich Power Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Notos Erergy Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding cormpany
Ogmore Fower Limited™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Oldhal: Energy Recovery Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
One Ashiord Healthcare Limited UK Crdinary 89% E;':;\Q;’s;:fservwces
One Harfield Hosoitat Limited UK Ordinary S0% Provision of

healthcare services

ST AT
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

T

One Healthcare Pariners Lirmited
Cria Weagehill Selar Holdirgs Limited™
Crta Wedgen:l Solar Limited™
Balfreys Barton Limted”

Farciau Holdings L nited™

Parciais bimitea™
Park Broaoband Limted™

Peanmat Soar 2 Ltd™

Pitchford (Condover A rfield & Stooxkbaich)
Lirmited™

Fitts Farrn Limited™
Porinos sclar Limited”
Pyms Lane Sotar Ltd™

Queens Park kKoad Energy Lirmited”

Rangeford Care Lirmied™”
Rangeford Chertsey Liraiten™”
Rangeford Cirencester Limited”
Rangeford Dorking Limited”

Soldings Lirmied™

Re)
wm
-t
A0
]
o
[l

Rangeford Picxering Limited”™
G d

Rengeford RAR Lmited”

Rangaford Retirernent Lving Holdr

iacleford Limed™

Rycton cstate Lmited”™
Sammas SARLS
Seloy Power Limmited™

SFP Fibre Umited®

o TR 0 SE TR Kb

s Ltg™

Country of Class of

inca rpo ration ih':a res Hoidf
UK Ordinary 85%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Crrdinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
LUK Ordinary 10G%
UK Ordinary 100%
LK Crdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
LK Ordinary 1G0%
UK Qrdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 160%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
France Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%

Principal

g activity

T 4 v b R B R B 2

Holding company
Holding company
Energy géeneration
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy gereration

Energy gereration
Holding comparty
Energy generation
Energy generaton

Care services for a
retirement village

Retirement village
development

Retirement village
development

Retirement village
development

Holding company

Retirernent village
development

Retirement village
development

Heolding company

Retirernent village
development

Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

Singrug Holdings Limeted™
Singrag Lirmited™

Six Hills Lare {Ragdale; Lirnred”
Skelarocke Energy Lirrited™

Slavghiergate Lirmited

Lnetterton Renewsble Fower Fues Limited”

Snetterton Renewsbie Power Holdings Limited™

Snetterion Rernewsabie Power Limited™
Solarf LPGS SARLS
A

Solarfi SPOL SARL”

Solarf; SP0Z SARLY

Solarfi SP10 SARL?
Southcombe Farm Limited™

St Asaph Power Lirited™

[%4]

readfast Parkhouse Solar Limited”

()

readfast Rudge Soar Lid™

(%2l

teadfast Shipton Belinger Solar Lirnitea™
Stellar Power Limited™

Stoneyhili Energy Lirntad®

sulis Energy Limited™

summrerston Energy Lirmited?™

Sunley Crayferr Lavant LLP™
Swish Fibre Contracting Limited®
Swish Fiore Limited®

Swich Fire Networks Ltd®
Swish Fibre Services Lirnited®

Swash Fiore Yorkshire®

Swash Trading Lirnited™

Country of Class of
incorporation shares
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Crdinary
Frarice Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK NA

UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
50%

100%

80%

100%

100%

80%

Principal

Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Supply of biomass
fuet

Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Ernergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generaticn
Energy generation
Dormant company
Holding company
Energy generation
NA

Fibre network
production

Holding company

Fibre network
production

Filore network
production

Fibre network
production

Holding compary
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name
TGC Solar 102 Limited™
TGC Solar 107 Cmited™

TGC Solar 48 Limeted™

TGO Sclar 83 Limitea™

The Fern Fower Compary Limited”

The Hollies Solar Farm Limited™
Thoresby Esiate (Buaby) Limited™
Tillirgham Power Limited™
“odhills Energy Lim'ed”
Tredown ranm Lroited”

Turves Solar Limmted™

UKSE 15 Solar Limsed”

United Mines Erergy -imited”

VOCSE Lid”

Victona Solar Lirmited™

Viners Energy Limited
VIt Lirminted™

voltafxance 01 SARL

Voltalrangs D5 SARL?

Voltafrance 13 SARL?

Voltafrance SARLY

WVortcoss Limited™

Wadswicw Grasen Proporty Services _

Warnnglon Power Limited”

kb 85 S e A e o

Waterien Solar Park Hodings Linied™

Wateroo Solar Parx Lirted™
Week Farm 2 Limited ™
Westwnood Power Limited™

Westwood Solar Limited”

mited’”

Country of Class of Principal

) Wincorporatioq mshf\res s Holding Ngﬁivity ]
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Haolding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy gereration
UK Ordinary 1007% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy gereration
UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy gereration
UK Ordirary  100% ;‘gdeunc‘fg"n ork
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinery  100% Lo netsork
France Ordinary 100% Energy gereration
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Orcinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
USA Ordinary  100% ;‘rtjo’deu’l?“(‘j’"rlork
UK Ordinary  100% zgizgf”t village
UK Crdinary  100% g:x‘;ifrgf;?e
UK Crdinary 100% Eriergy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Heolding company
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
LK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
Name e ecmsean o MCOrporation  shares Holding activity & ...
‘.;‘-f‘efr;;‘_‘rdeﬂ Ef-é:‘g“y i.i."“"\ﬂi‘l'r’fdh & UK Ordinary 100% Er;ergy gemerat\on
Wharf Power Limmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Whiddon Farm Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Whinney Hill Znergy Lirr teg” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Wincele Solar Holdings Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Wolverhamptor Power L™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wryde Croft Wird Farm Limited ' UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WHSE Bradford Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
WEE Hullavington Holdings L ted” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
WSE Hullavingten Lirrited™ UK Orainary 100% Energy generation
WSE Park walt Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Pyde Drove Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Zestec Asset Managernent Lirmited™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Acquired after year end Date
Fern Rooftop Sclar (B3D) L\rmtec.l Commm e B OQ/OWS/ZOZZ
Cuckoo internet Ltd 31/08/20622
Warift Gigral Limited 13/07/2022
4Gf Limited 22/11/2022

Subsidianes exerapt from auait by virtue of s480A of the Corrpanies Act 2004
TSubs diznes exernpt from audis by v rtue of s479A of the Companies Act 2006
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Dissolved or sold during the year and up until signing o . Date .
Berreﬂ Ho{dmgs‘z\}ﬁlted - s i R NS £ AR R S 20/07/2021
Ridge Wind Acquis ton Lirmited 20/07/2021
Fern Energy RidgeWird Acquisiions Lirmited 14/0972021
Fern Energy Rizgewind Holdings timited 2040972021
Fern Energy Parinerships Holdings Lirmited 21/09/2021
Fraisthorpe (Holding) Lirnited 29/03/2022
Y Cldhall Energy Recovery Limited 13/09/2022
Comm?2l Lid 15/05/2022
Darlington Poirt Holdco Pty Limited 08/07/2022
Carlington faint Solar Farrn Py Wimited 08/07/2022
Dariington Poont Sukkoldco Pty Limized 0B/07/2022
Norde Power Develogrnenrt Listed 23/12/2021
Voyrinkangas Wind Farm Oy 23/12/2021
Saunamaa Wind Farm Oy 23/12/2021

™ égwsfered offce of all compan es listed gbove is at 6th Fioor, 33 Holbor, London, England, FCIN ZHT
excent for those sat oul below

y—

ul Grzybowska 2/29, 05-131, Warsaw, Poland

]
R

irsent Masons LLR Captal Sgoare 58 Mornson Sireet, Edinourgn, Scotland, EH3 88F

[$X)

1 West Regent Street, Clasgow, G2 TAP
4 22 rue Alphonse de Neoville, 75017 Paris, France

Th

6tn Floer, 2 Crand Caral Square, Cublic 2, 202 A342, Irelarn

wn
(&N

& The Cartage House, Station Works, Statio Roaz, Claverdon, Warwicksrire, Uriied Kingdoem, CV35 2FE
7 Zone ndustrelle de Courtine 115 Rue Du Mourelet 84000 Avicnor, France

8. 13 Salisbury Place, Londaon, Englana, WiH 1F)

& The Corporaticr Trust Corrpany, Carcoration Trust Center, 1209 Crange Sreet, W im ngtorn 19801,
nitec States

15, 4v Foor Satdre Cours, 20 Caste "errace, Zdinburgr, Scotarao, EHL 2ZEN

JL Apolle Rouse, Mercury Park Wycombe Lane, Woonurmn Green, Har Wycorrpe, England, HPLD OHH

l2. Level 33101 Cailing Street, Metbourne, Victoria, 2000, Australa

230 Beaufort Court, =gg ranm Lare, #€ings Langley. Hertfardsnire, Whia E_R

24 7-8 Steatfora Riece, Longon, England, WiC TAY

The direciors believe that the carry ng vawe of the investmenis is susported by trer underlying ret asse's.



51 APPENDIX = SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE (UNAUDITED)

Fern’s share price has performed in line with targets

Fern Tracing Limdted 1s an urlsted comuany Every ronth, odr Board of Direciors agrees a prce at which it

will be vallirg 1o ssue new shares The snare price is unaudited

The figures below include the share price cf tne previcds parent (now Fern Trading Group —mited) as wel

as this entity

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited

19
13 ra
17 o

1§

15 e
14 M’““‘W””‘W

-
13 Mm‘“"*

12 S
11
10

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Performance 's calculated based or the sale price for Fern's shares at 2 June each year. The share price i
not subject o auddt by Ernst & Young LLF

Annual discrete performancs

Financial Year Discrete share price performance

DTN : it a6 B R AT 6T Sk B Gt S B e SN S

June 2021-22 9.9i%
June 2020-21 | - 4.87%
\iune 2049& - 7 o - - 0.33%
June 2018-19 6.23%

Ju-ﬂ-e-' 2017:16 - 1.05%
June2oier7  ssa%
Jufé .2015—16. R : 3.83%
June20i415  398%
June 2013-14 - 3.72%
June 2012-13 3.97%

June 201112 1.02%

Source Octopus Investrnents Limited, 2 June 2022
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Directors and advisers

Direciors ! Begistered office

PS Latham Poetn Tloor, 33 Helvom,

K Willey Poondor Englana FCIN 2HT
P Barow :

T Artnur facpointad 1 July 2022 ! independent auditors

Zrrst & Young LLP

)

ompany secrelsry ford Holse

o
Octopus Compary Secretaral Services Limied 6 Redford Srreer
Beast BT2 707

O

Company number

Forward-looking statements

Thiz Annaal Report containg certain forward-.ooxing staiements related © the Company's fulure busnicss

and finarciat performam —e and future events ¢ developmentis These statements are based or the current
knowledge and expectat ons of managerien: anag ace sdbject o assurptions, (<3 and urcertarues:, some
of which are related to factors tnat are beyord tre coniret of the Cormpany Accordingly, no assurance can
bo given that any particutar expectation well be met and ‘orward-look ng statermenis regardimg nast trends or

activitiies should not be taken = representaticn that such trends o acuv-ties will continue in the future Past

performance cannor ke relied o a3 a quide to future perorrnance. Notn g .n this Annua. Reoort sholld be

censtrued as a prof T forecast




